
 

Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board 

 

by video conference 

 

Wednesday, 30 November 2022 

2.00 pm 

STATUTORY MEMBERS 

Conwy County Borough Council 
Councillor Charlie McCoubrey 
(Leader of the Council) 
 
Rhun ap Gareth (Chief Executive) 
 
Denbighshire County Council 
Councillor Jason McLellan (Leader of the 
Council) 
Graham Boase (Chief Executive) 
 

Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 
Libby Ryan-Davies - Integrated Health 
Community Director  
Alyson Constantine - Integrated Health 
Community Director of Operations 
 
Natural Resources Wales 
Martin Cox (Head of Local Delivery North) 
Mark Hughes (Team Leader North East Wales) 
 
North Wales Fire and Rescue Service 
Helen Macarthur (Assistant Chief Officer) 
 

INVITED PARTICIPANTS 

Community and Voluntary Support Conwy 
Wendy Jones (Chief Officer) 
 
Denbighshire Voluntary Services Council 
Tom Barham (Chief Executive) 
 
Public Health Wales 

Louise Woodfine, Consultant in Public Health 

 
Town & Community Councils 
Councillor Carol Marubbi (representing Conwy) 
Councillor Gordon Hughes (representing 
Denbighshire 

North Wales Police 
Owain Llewelyn, Divisional Commander 
 
National Probation Service 
Andy Jones, Head of Probation Delivery Unit 
 
Welsh Government Representative 
Vicky Poole (Deputy Chief Inspector of Care 
Inspectorate Wales) 
 
Office of the North Wales Police and Crime 
Commissioner 
Stephen Hughes (Chief Executive) 
 
North Wales Housing Association 
Helena Kirk (Chief Executive) 
 

 

Hannah Edwards, PSB Development Officer 

Conwy County Borough Council, Bodlondeb, Conwy, LL32 8DU 

01492 574059 hannah.edwards@conwy.gov.uk  

Public Document Pack

mailto:hannah.edwards@conwy.gov.uk


 

 

AGENDA 

 

 

 

1 WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 

2 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING  (Pages 3 - 8) 

 To approve the minutes of the last meeting held on 26 September 2022 (copy 

attached) 

3 MEETING ACTION TRACKER  (Pages 9 - 10) 

 The Chair will lead on this item (copy attached). 

4 WELL-BEING PLAN - APPROVAL OF DRAFT PLAN  (Pages 11 - 112) 

 To receive feedback from the consultation on the draft Well-being Plan 2023 

to 2028 and seek, pending any amendments, approval of a final version. 

(copy attached) Iolo McGregor (DCC) to lead on this item. 

5 REVIEW OF PSB RISK REGISTER  (Pages 113 - 122) 

 To receive an annual update on the Conwy and Denbighshire PSB’s Risk 

Register (copy attached) Amanda Jones (CCBC) to lead on this item. 

6 UPDATE FROM PSB JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  (Pages 123 - 130) 

 To receive an update from the PSB Joint Scrutiny Committee, (minutes of the 

meeting attached). Councillor John Roberts to lead on the item. 

7 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 131 - 132) 

 The Chair will lead on this item (copy attached). 

 

 

 



 

CONWY AND DENBIGHSHIRE PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board held by video 
conference on Monday, 26 September 2022 at 2.00 pm. 
 

 
Present 

Libby Ryan Davies 
Betsi Cadwalader University Health 
Board 

 Iwan Davies Conwy County Borough Council 
 Councillor Charlie McCoubrey Conwy County Borough Council 
 Councillor Jason McLellan Denbighshire County Council 
 Nicola Kneale (representing 

Graham Boase) 
Denbighshire County Council 

 Martin Cox  Natural Resources Wales 
 Justin Hanson Natural Resources Wales 
 Helen MacArthur North Wales Fire and Rescue Service 
 Helena Kirk North Wales Housing Association 
 Louise Woodfine Public Health Wales 

 
Officers: Amanda Jones  Conwy County Borough Council 
 Hannah Edwards Conwy County Borough Council 
 Mike Corcoran Co-production Network for Wales 
 Suzanne Iuppa Co-production Network for Wales 
 Iolo McGregor Denbighshire County Council 
 Shannon Richardson Denbighshire County Council 
 Rhodri Tomos-Jones Denbighshire County Council 
 Helen Millband Natural Resources Wales 
 Sandra Williams Translator 

 
Observers Janet Joyce Public Health Wales 

  
 

1 WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from –  
 

 Graham Boase, Denbighshire County Council 

 Jo Whitehead, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 

 Wendy Jones, CVCS 

 Tom Barham, DVSC 

 Cllr Carol Marubbi, Conwy T&CCs representative  

 Vicky Poole, Welsh Government 
 
 

2 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING  
 
The minutes of the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board meeting held 
on 27 July 2022 were submitted. 
 
Matters of accuracy –  

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

 Jo Whitehead's name was misspelt as well as Helen MacArthur. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2022 be received and 
approved as a correct record. 
 
 

3 MEETING ACTION TRACKER  
 
The Chair, Councillor Jason McLellan, presented the meeting Action Tracker. The 
board were happy with the actions and was happy to discuss the matters which 
were a part of the agenda at length later at the meeting. 
 

4 MATTERS ARISING  
 
The chair and Iolo McGregor welcomed Libby Ryan Davies to the board at her first 
meeting. No other matters arising were discussed. 
 

5 DEVELOPMENT OF WELL-BEING PLAN - UPDATE ON CONSULTATION 
FEEDBACK RECEIVED TO DATE  
 
Both Iolo McGregor and Amanda Jones updated members on the consultation and 
feedback received on developing the Well-being plan. 
 
The 12 week statutory consultation was launched on the 17th of August, and will 
close on the 9th of November.  The draft plan had been circulated to all of the 
statutory consultees as required under the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 and other critical shareholders. The Conwy and Denbighshire 
Joint PSB scrutiny will be consulted on the draft plan at their next meeting. 
 
Currently, there have been no responses to the consultation; this could have been 
due to the date of the launch of the consultation and a break during the time of 
mourning. However, officers will continue to promote the consultation to encourage 
feedback, including through social media sources.  Request that PSB partners 
share the consultation within their organisation and networks. 
 
Iolo added that whilst Conwy was hosting the consultation, Denbighshire have been 
working on adding additional detail to the plan, following discussions with the Well-
being and Future Generation's office.  This has included adding 4 key themes to 
support the main aspiration of reducing deprivation and inequality.  These include -  
 

 Well-being - Communities are happier, healthier and more resilient in the 
face of challenges, such as climate change or the rising cost of living. 

 Economy – There is a flourishing economy, supported by a skilled 
workforce. 

 Equality – Those with protected characteristics face fewer barriers. 
 Housing – There is improved access to good quality housing. 

 
 

Page 4



Confirmed that the draft well-being plan will be circulated following the meeting to 
members to provide any further comments.  Requested that any comments are 
feedback by the 7th October 2022, in order for officers to make necessary 
amendments.  The final draft well-being plan will be presented for approval at the 
next PSB meeting in November, for members to then ratify within their own 
organisations.  Final approval of the plan will be sought at the March 2023 PSB 
meeting. 
 
Martin Cox from Natural Resources Wales. (NRW) highlighted that clear links would 
need to be seen with the well-being plan and the climate emergency to have the full 
support of organisations such as NRW. 
 
Louise Woodfine supported the themes highlighted by Iolo; the health board were 
collating responses and would send them to the collating officers. 
 
Both Iolo McGregor and Amanda Jones both stated they would be happy to receive 
any further feedback from the board through email correspondence. 
 
The chair thanked officers for all of the work concerning the well-being plan. 
 

RESOLVED that: 
i. the PSB note the Well-being plan. 
ii. PSB support officers to circulate the draft well-being plan to members to 

provide comment by the 7th October 2022. 
 

6 COMMUNITY NARRATIVES PROJECT - AGREEMENT ON COMMUNITY 
AREAS FOR CONWY & DENBIGHSHIRE  
 
The chair presented members of the board with the agreed community areas for the 
Community narrative projects. They were Pensarn for Conwy and Rhyl for 
Denbighshire. The board decided on these areas; it was also stated that rural areas 
in both Counties could be looked at later with the Community narrative projects. 
 
RESOLVED that the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board note the 
update on the Community Narratives project. 
 

7 ACTIVE TRAVEL CHARTER  
 
Louise Woodfine from Natural Resources Wales (NRW) presented the active travel 
charter (previously circulated) to the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services 
Board. 
 
In 2021, the Welsh Government launched Llwybr Newydd, the Transport 
Strategy for Wales. The strategy aims to achieve a transferal shift by displacing 
private car journeys with walking, cycling and public transport. The Active Travel 
Act has further supported this strategy for Wales. 
 
Due to the significant public health benefits of active travel, the Betsi Cadwaladr 
University Health Board (BCUHB) Public Health Team have led the development of 
a Healthy Travel Charter for north Wales (see appendix a). The charter was 

Page 5



developed in partnership with key organisations in north Wales, including the six 
Local Authorities, Sustrans, Natural Resources Wales and Transport for Wales. The 
charter provides organisations with various areas to take action against, spanning 
leadership and communication, public transport, walking and cycling, agile working 
and ultra-low emission vehicles. 
 
On 8 July 2022, the Healthy Travel Charter was presented to the North 
Wales Regional Leadership Board. Member organisations were asked to support 
the adoption of the charter within their organisations. Alongside this 
recommendation, it was suggested that the Charter aligns well with the 
Public Service Board (PSB) Wellbeing Objectives. Raising awareness, supporting 
and promoting the adoption of the Charter across north Wales PSB partner 
organisations, and offering support to smaller organisations from those PSB 
partners that have already achieved significant progress against active travel 
priorities could be necessary for PSBs. 
 
Over the past 50 years, increased reliance on car travel has led to declining levels 
of physical activity, increasing levels of obesity, widespread air pollution, social 
isolation, and worsening health inequalities. Active travel describes a shift from car 
use to 'walking and cycling. 
 
Conwy and Denbighshire PSB are currently in the process of finalising their 
wellbeing plan. The PSB has agreed that the wellbeing objective for 2023-2025 was 
'We want Conwy and Denbighshire to be an equal place with less deprivation'. The 
root causes of the inequities currently being experienced across Conwy and 
Denbighshire have been identified as follows: 
 

 The cost of living 

 A need for greater physical and digital infrastructure 

 Lack of confidence and aspiration 

 Skill and employment opportunity gaps 

 The availability of healthy housing 

 Access to services 

 Anti-social behaviour 

 The impact of Covid-19 
 
Prioritising the action of PSB partners adopting the Healthy Travel Charter and 
supporting more comprehensive partners in adopting and implementing the charter 
offers the PSB an opportunity to begin addressing some of these root causes. 
 
Conwy and Denbighshire PSB have also recognised the importance of 
Social, Environmental, Cultural, and Economic inequality. Air quality and road traffic 
collisions cause many of these inequalities. Those living in the most deprived 
communities are more likely to be living in areas of low air quality. 
 
The board were happy with the Active Travel Charter. However, Iwan Davies 
highlighted the low-carbon vehicles aspect of active travel he suggested the 
wording could change to encourage people to walk or cycle on shorter journeys 
rather than using low-emission vehicles. Louise Woodfine would take the 
suggestion to the health board. 

Page 6



 
Nicola Kneale informed the board that Denbighshire was working on its new 
corporate plan, and the Active Travel charter could be considered whilst it was 
being formulated. 
 
RESOLVED that –  
 

(i) The PSB provide shared support working towards adopting the ethos 
and principles of the Healthy Travel Charter within their organisations. 

(ii) The PSB would encourage and influence members of the wider system 
to raise awareness and support and champion the Healthy Travel 
Charter. 

(iii)The PSB notes the Healthy Travel Charter and works with and develops 
the implementation of elements of the charter. 

 
8 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  

 
A copy of the Public Services Board forward work programme was presented. 
 
An overview of Corporate Joint Committees (CJCs) was raised, and any information 
that DCC and CCBC have could be shared with the PSB; the chair was happy for 
the information to be shared with the PSB. 
 
RESOLVED that the forward work programme be approved. 
 

THE MEETING CONCLUDED AT 2:45 pm 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board 
Action Tracker 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Meeting Action  Action Owner Progress Update Deadline 
Status 

Open / Closed / Not 
started 

July 22 
1 

Write to invited participants to confirm they 
are happy to continue being a member of the 
Conwy & Denbighshire PSB.  

Chair & PSB 
support 
officers 

Complete 
September 

22 
Closed 

2 

Write to key partners outlining what we’re 
trying to achieve and if/how they want to be 
involved.   

Chair & PSB 
support 
officers 

Complete 
September 

22 
Closed 

3 
Schedule informal networking sessions for the 
Board. 

PSB support 
officers 

In progress – Informal meetings will be scheduled 
along with formal meetings when arranging the 
23/24 calendar. 

December 
22 

Open 

7 

Launch the consultation on the draft Well-
being Plan and trigger the 14 week statutory 
period for feedback with the Well-being of 
Future Generations Commissioner. 

PSB support 
officers 

In progress – consultation was launch in mid-
August and will run for 12 weeks until the 9th 
November.  An update will be provided at the next 
PSB meeting on the feedback received so far. 

November 
22 

Closed 

Sept 
2022 

1 

Inform Dr Rachel of the community areas 
chosen for the community narrative project, 
and set up meeting to discuss. 

Hannah 
Edwards 

In progress – meeting held with Dr Rachel to 
inform of community areas and discuss 
engagement focus.  She is forming working group 
with officers from Conwy and Denbighshire who 
work with these communities. 

March 2023 Open 

2 
Circulate update regarding the Corporate Joint 
Committees (CJCs) to the Board 

Hannah 
Edwards 

Complete 
September 

2022 
Closed 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Mae'r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg. This document is available in Welsh. 

 

Report To: Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board 

Date of Meeting: November 30, 2022 

Lead Member / 

Officer: 

Cllr Jason McLellan, Leader for Denbighshire County Council 

and PSB chair 

Report Authors: Iolo McGregor, Strategic Planning and Performance Team 

Leader, Denbighshire County Council 

Title: Conwy and Denbighshire PSB Well-being Plan, 2023 to 2028 

1. What is the report about? 

1.1 The report presents the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board’s draft 

Well-being Plan for 2023 to 2028. 

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

2.1 To receive feedback from the consultation on the draft Well-being Plan 2023 to 

2028 and seek, pending any amendments, approval of a final version to enable 

partner organisations to give their ratification between December and March, prior 

to adoption by the PSB on March 23. 

3. What are the Recommendations?  

3.1 That members consider the feedback received from the consultation (appendix 3 to 

5) and the content of the draft report (appendix 1) and Well-being Impact 

Assessment (appendix 2); and 

3.2 Pending any amendments arising from the discussion, approve the draft Well-being 

Plan for ratification by individual organisations between now and March 23. 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



 
 

3.3 Agree that the draft Well-being Plan be made available on the PSB’s website for a 

final ‘sense-check’ and invite stakeholders to get in touch if they want to be involved 

in, or feedback on any aspect of the Plan. 

4. Report details 

4.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a statutory 

requirement on each PSB to produce a Local Well-being Plan for their area. The 

Local Well-being Plan must set out how the PSB intends to improve the economic, 

social, environmental and cultural well-being of its area by setting local objectives 

that will maximise the contribution made by the Board to achieving the well-being 

goals in its area. The Local Well-being Plan must be published no later than one 

year after the publication of its Well-being Assessment. Therefore, we are working 

towards a proposed deadline of March / April 2023 for publishing the Local Well-

being Plan. 

4.2 Informed by the Well-being Assessment, the PSB has held multiple prioritisation 

discussions (in January, March and May) supported by the Co-Production Network 

for Wales, to consider what areas of concern would most benefit from PSB 

intervention. These discussions sought to identify the root causes to the problems 

identified in the assessment, considering their relationship to one another and the 

level of influence or control that the PSB has. Finally, it was agreed that one 

principal theme should be put forward that looks to alleviate deprivation and 

inequality. 

4.3 The PSB met again in July and agreed the outline of a Plan that seeks to Make 

Conwy and Denbighshire a more equal place with less deprivation. Public 

consultation was subsequently launched on August 17, and will run until November 

9. Simultaneously we have triggered the 14-week period during which the Well-

being of Future Generations Commissioner must provide feedback on our draft 

plan, and those conversations have been taking place between officers. The public 

consultation may be viewed on the PSB’s website. 

4.4 Work has been ongoing over the last three months to develop the Plan based on 

the feedback received and the intelligence that has got us to this point. We have 

twice met with a representative of the Well-being of Future Generations 

Commissioner, Elle Henley-Herat, to discuss their feedback on the Plan, the final 

Page 12

https://conwyanddenbighshirelsb.org.uk/home/english-wellbeing-assessment/english-providing-housing-including-affordable-housing/
https://conwyanddenbighshirelsb.org.uk/draft-local-well-being-plan-2023-2028/


 
 

version of which is contained in appendix 4. PSB support officers have also met 

twice to develop the Plan and discuss feedback from the consultation (summarised 

in appendix 5), including a detailed response from partners at NRW (appendix 3). 

The draft presented in appendix 1 is the culmination of this work. It is felt to be a 

strong draft that well represents the interests of partners and hopefully captures the 

essence of what it is the PSB wants to achieve. 

4.5 Pending any amendments and following PSB approval of the draft on November 30, 

it will now be for individual member organisations to ratify the Plan during the winter 

through their chosen approval channels. We are assured that the arrangements for 

this are in place, which will then enable the PSB to finally adopt their Well-being 

Plan formally in March 2023. 

4.6 In the interim, it is proposed that we again make the draft Well-being Plan available 

on the PSB’s website to invite stakeholders to contact us if they want to be involved 

in, or provide feedback on any aspect of delivery. It would also at this stage be good 

practice to show where things are up to following the latest round of consultation, 

and to demonstrate how we have listened to the feedback received so far. 

5. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and 

others? 

5.1 The Well-being Plan has been based on the evidence from the Well-being 

Assessment, which has been out for public engagement throughout February and 

March 2022. In addition to this, it was presented to the Conwy and Denbighshire 

Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee in February. Two workshops and a public 

meeting of the PSB have subsequently deliberated on the assessment’s findings 

and the prioritisation of themes. These were supported by the Co-Production 

Network for Wales.  

5.2 Public consultation on the draft plan took place between August 17 and November 

9. During this time, discussions took place with the Well-being of Future 

Generations Commissioner’s Office, supporting PSB officers and members, and 

joint Scrutiny. 

 

Page 13



 
 

6. How does the decision contribute to our Well-being 

Objectives?  

6.1 The Well-being Plan 2023 to 2028 will set the Conwy and Denbighshire PSB’s well-

being objectives for the next 5 years. 

7. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

7.1  There are no immediate costs arising as a result of the Plan or this report, though in 

taking forward some of its steps, the PSB will need to assess the requirement for 

resource and capacity. 

8. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 

reduce them? 

8.1 There is a risk that the PSB lacks influence or control within the objectives that they 

choose. This risk will be mitigated by PSB adopting a leadership approach as there 

is acknowledgment that the PSB has limited resource. 

8.2. There is a risk that the priorities of the PSB duplicates the work that is on-going in 

other organisations. It is therefore important to work closely with partners and 

stakeholders to identify where the PSB leadership role can best add value. 

8.3. There is a risk that feedback from the commissioner, partners or the public puts 

pressure on the PSB’s Well-being Plan to take on more than it can reasonably 

achieve. 

8.4 There is a risk that the Well-being Plan is not ready to be approved by the PSB in 

March 2023, missing the statutory deadline. Based on current progress, however, 

this is unlikely. 

9. Power to make the decision 

9.1 Chapter 2, section 39, Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

9.2 Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board Terms of Reference. 

 

 

Page 14



 

Mae'r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg. This document is available in Welsh. 

 

 

 

Conwy and Denbighshire  

Public Services Board 

 

Well-being Plan 2023 to 2028 

 

This document outlines the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board’s Well-being 

Plan under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, which seeks to make 

Conwy and Denbighshire a more equal place with less deprivation.  

Page 15



 

2 

 

Contents 

Introduction .......................................................................................................................... 4 

How has the Well-being Plan been developed? .................................................................. 6 

Well-being Statement and Our Objective ............................................................................. 7 

 

How we will work ............................................................................................................. 10 

Well-being – Communities are happier, healthier and more resilient in the face of 

challenges, such as the Climate Change and Nature Emergency, or the rising cost of 

living................................................................................................................................... 12 

Economy – There is a flourishing economy, supported by a skilled workforce fit for the 

future.................................................................................................................................. 18 

Equality – Those with protected characteristics face fewer barriers. ................................ 23 

Housing – There is improved access to good quality housing. ......................................... 28 

 

Delivery of the plan and monitoring progress ..................................................................... 33 

 

  

Page 16



 

3 

 

Contact us 

For more information on our Well-being Plan or the Conwy and Denbighshire Public 

Services Board, please contact us by: 

Post: C/O Public Services Board Development Officer 

Conwy County Borough Council 

Bodlondeb 

Conwy  

LL32 8DU 

Email: countyconversation@conwy.gov.uk 

Phone: 01492 574059 

BT Relay Service Customers with hearing or speech impairments can contact any Council 

service by dialling 18001 before the number they require. 

We are happy to provide this document in alternative formats on request, including 

large print, audio and braille. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh. We will respond to any correspondence in 

Welsh, which will not lead to a delay.  

Page 17

mailto:countyconversation@conwy.gov.uk


 

4 

 

Introduction 

The Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board (PSB) is pleased to present this 

Local Well-being Plan for our two counties. It is the culmination of work that began in 2021, 

and represents our conclusions on what we feel are the key areas that pose the greatest 

need or challenge for our communities, and where we feel the PSB can make the greatest 

contribution without duplicating good work already taking place within existing partnerships 

and organisations. 

A lot of work has already taken place to get us to this point, but this is only the start of the 

PSB’s journey. This plan is an outline of what it is we would like to achieve, but there is 

more work to be done to develop our programme of work, and we would welcome your 

input into this as part of our ongoing conversation with our communities. If you would like 

to be kept informed of our work, get involved or provide feedback to us, please see our 

contact details on the previous page. 

A requirement of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, the PSB affords 

public services an exciting opportunity to come together to challenge serious problems in 

our community areas. To achieve this aim, the Board will play a greater Leadership Role 

with this Plan than perhaps its previous plan had allowed, tending to be too focussed on 

operational delivery. Through this approach it is hoped that the Board will provide strong 

shared direction and responsibility for effective long-term change, using our collective 

voice as partners to influence and advocate on behalf of our communities. 

We must of course be realistic about the financial constraints that our sectors are facing, 

but at the same time see this as a chance to effect real change and remain open to 

working in different ways. All partners on the board are committed to working 

collaboratively to deliver sustainable and effective services that prevent problems 

emerging in the long-term. We want to support our communities to be prosperous, resilient 

and healthier. We want to contribute to the Welsh Government vision of a more equal and 

globally responsible Wales, where we have cohesive communities and vibrant culture. 

  

Page 18



 

5 

 

About the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board 

In April 2016, the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 established a 

statutory board, known as a Public Services Board (PSB), in each local authority area in 

Wales. Conwy and Denbighshire have used the power within the Act to merge both of their 

separate PSBs into a single board for the Conwy and Denbighshire region. 

The PSB is a collection of public bodies working together to improve the well-being of their 

county. This means that as a Board the Conwy and Denbighshire PSB must improve the 

economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of the Conwy and Denbighshire 

area by working towards the seven national Well-being goals. 

Membership consists of senior representatives from the organisations listed below.  

However, membership will be reviewed regularly to ensure that there is sufficient 

representation to deliver our priorities. 

We also have a website where the public can access the Local Well-being Plan and 

Assessment, as well as meeting minutes and papers, newsletters, and find further 

information about our partners. 

 Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 

 Community and Voluntary Support Conwy 

 Conwy County Borough Council 

 Denbighshire County Council 

 Denbighshire Voluntary Services Council 

 National Probation Service 

 Natural Resources Wales 

 North Wales Fire and Rescue Service 

 North Wales Police 

 Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office (for North Wales) 

 Public Health Wales 

 Welsh Government 

  

Page 19

https://conwyanddenbighshirelsb.org.uk/
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/861/home
http://cvsc.org.uk/en/
http://www.conwy.gov.uk/en/Resident/Resident.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/home.aspx
http://www.dvsc.co.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/national-probation-service
https://naturalresources.wales/?lang=en
http://www.nwales-fireservice.org.uk/home/?lang=en-gb
https://www.north-wales.police.uk/
http://www.northwales-pcc.gov.uk/en/home.aspx
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/888/home
http://gov.wales/?lang=en


 

6 

 

How has the Well-being Plan been developed? 

The first step in the development of the Well-being Plan involved members of the Conwy 

and Denbighshire Public Services Board working together on developing our Local 

Assessment of Well-being for the area, which is available to view online. This joint 

approach was taken to ensure that the assessment was shaped using the expertise, 

knowledge and insight of all organisations. 

The assessment aims to capture the strengths and positives about Conwy and 

Denbighshire’s people, communities and places. It also describes the challenges and 

opportunities faced both now and in the future. It has been informed by data, national and 

local research, and most importantly feedback provided to us by residents, visitors and 

businesses through our ‘County Conversation’. 

During the summer and autumn of 2021, we spoke to as many people as possible to ask 

their views about what works well in Conwy and Denbighshire, and what we needed to 

focus on for the benefit of future generations. We asked people to talk about their 

experiences and their communities so that we could understand a bit more about local 

concerns and strengths. We also engaged with a wide cross section of the community, 

including:  

 Community groups and forums, covering a range of community interests in a mix of 

urban and rural locations.  

 Residents. 

 Disabled people. 

 Business networks. 

 City, Town and Community Councils. 

 Young people (through schools and youth school councils). 

 North Wales Race Equality Network.  

 Other public sector partner organisations. 

Common to the rest of Wales, consultation and engagement work has proved challenging 

during the Covid-19 pandemic. Nonetheless, in addition to engaging with the above 

groups, we used a variety of communication methods to promote our County 

Conversation, including the use of internal partner channels and staff networks, such as 

Page 20

https://conwyanddenbighshirelsb.org.uk/home/english-wellbeing-assessment/
https://conwyanddenbighshirelsb.org.uk/home/english-wellbeing-assessment/


 

7 

 

the Conwy Bulletin, Denbighshire’s County Voice newsletter, Business e-Bulletins and 

mailing lists; but also through social media and press releases. We also monitored the 

County Conversation to ensure that we had received feedback from every age range, 

every geographic area of the county, and every subject interest area. Whilst we are 

confident that we have reached out to a wide cross section of the community, in terms of 

geography and protected characteristics, we feel that we can do more as we take our work 

forward to improve the depth of consultation with some groups of people who may have 

been underrepresented.  

In early 2022 we began to discuss the findings of our Well-being Assessment in more 

detail, and identified the strategic issues where we could collectively make a difference as 

a group of partners. This work was supported by the Co-Production Network for Wales. 

From our analysis, the Board came up with a long list of strategic issues. A series of 

workshops were then held in the summer of 2022 to prioritise areas of greatest need along 

Social, Cultural, Environmental and Economic themes, and to develop potential solutions. 

This was done by considering the synergies between priorities, the impact the PSB could 

have, the long-term implications, and where work was already taking place. This resulted 

in our redefining the plan into a single priority area focusing on Conwy and Denbighshire 

being a more equal place with less deprivation. 

Further consultation was held with the public and partners on our draft plan between 

August and November 2022. This included discussions with the Well-being of Future 

Generations Commissioner’s Office, and our Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 

Conwy and Denbighshire. Having analysed all the feedback and finalised the final draft in 

November 2022, partner organisations then individually discussed and affirmed their 

commitment to our Well-being Plan prior to its final approval in March 2023. 

Well-being Statement and Our Objective 

Our objective is to make Conwy and Denbighshire a more equal place with less 

deprivation. As described above, our Well-being Assessment, which examines data and 

the views of local people through the lens of the Well-being Goals for Wales, has 

supported the setting of this objective for our area. Our objective, therefore, directly 

contributes to the achievement of the national goals. This gives us confidence that we are 

Page 21

https://copronet.wales/


 

8 

 

focusing our resources on delivering the right outcomes that will be of the greatest benefit 

to our communities. 

Our Assessment of Local Well-being detailed some sixty topics on a range of subjects, 

arranged by the seven national well-being goals. Fourteen of these were highlighted as 

areas of particular concern or opportunity. ‘A more equal Wales’ came out most strongly 

as commonly connecting well-being assessment themes, aligned with the following root 

causes that we have identified as contributing to socio-economic disadvantage and 

inequality in our counties: 

 The cost of living 

 A need for greater physical and digital infrastructure 

 Lack of confidence and aspiration 

 Skill and employment opportunity gaps 

 The availability of healthy housing 

 Access to services  

 Anti-social behaviour  

 The impact of Covid-19 

Our plan will seek tackle deprivation and issues relating to poverty in Conwy and 

Denbighshire in the long-term, including Social, Environmental, Cultural, and Economic 

inequality. This aspiration means we may not see the benefits of our plan within its life-

time, but that we will make sure that we are looking ahead to the needs of two, three or 

four generations in the future. The Public Services Board’s work will focus on areas where 

collaboratively, we can make a difference and have a long term impact. We do not, 

however, wish to duplicate work. Our Plan is based on analysis of other partnership 

boards already working to improve the North Wales region, such as with community safety 

or economic growth. 

It is important that sustainability and the Climate and Nature Emergency is embedded in 

everything that we do. People and communities must not be disadvantaged or left behind 

by the necessary changes that are coming because of Climate Change, and we must 

make sure that we adapt and collaborate to fully realise the opportunities ahead.  

Sustainable development is the overriding principle of the Conwy and Denbighshire PSB’s 

activities, and we are committed to applying the 5 ways of working (collaboration, 

Page 22

https://conwyanddenbighshirelsb.org.uk/home/english-wellbeing-assessment/


 

9 

 

prevention, integration, long term and involvement) to achieving Well-being priorities. In 

developing our priority area, we focused on the long-term by looking at past, current and 

(predicted) future data trends, and also by discussing consultees long-term aspirations for 

each of the national well-being goals. Looking at future trends - and considering 

associated risks and opportunities – enabled us to cover the principle of prevention. 

Involvement was a key driving principle. We have invested a lot of time in holding 

discussions with our communities as well as focused workshops with professionals. We 

endeavoured to make these representative of our community areas (reflecting age, 

gender, social status, occupations, etc.). The development of our plan and its delivery 

could not, and will not be isolated to one Public Services Board partner alone; it will 

require the continuing collaboration and commitment of all partners to guarantee its 

success. 

Further detailed planning will take place during the first year of the plan to define or work 

programme and timescales. This ‘detailed planning’ is one of the places where meaningful 

co-production and involvement can occur. Where there is time for people to be involved, 

and tangible, relevant discussions to involve them in. It should also be noted though that 

our objective is not considered to be short-term in nature, so delivery is likely to take place 

over the medium to longer-term. We must also accept, however, that not everything in the 

Plan is within the Public Services Board’s control, especially in the long-term. For example, 

the success of our economy will depend on more factors outside of our circle of influence, 

than within it. 

Below are the principles that we will apply to How We Will Work in delivering this Plan. 

This is followed by the four key themes that the PSB will take forward in support of its 

objective to make Conwy and Denbighshire a more equal place with less deprivation. 

  

Page 23



 

10 

 

How we will work 

It is important to us that the PSB is set-up in the right way from the very start of this Well-

being Plan, to ensure that it delivers the right benefits for our communities in the most 

effective and efficient way. In the undertaking of all our activities, the Public Services 

Board will work collectively in its partnership role to: 

 Leadership: Provide strong shared leadership and responsibility for effective long-

term change, using our collective voice as partners to influence and advocate on 

behalf of our communities. 

 

 Co-production: Foster an environment, and encourage strong networks, that promote 

meaningful engagement and communication with our communities, supporting a 

culture where co-production and involvement thrives. 

 

 Fairness: Promote fairness, equality and diversity through all of our work. 

 

 Informed decision-making: Maintain effective governance that allows for strong, 

evidence-based decision making, acting on recommendations made through quality 

research and engagement. 

 

 Transparency: Have clear and transparent performance management arrangements 

in place. 

 

 Assess: Ensure that our activities and decisions are assessed for their impact in 

terms of the national Well-being Goals, the sustainable development principle, and five 

ways of working. This includes taking account of short and long-term needs, applying 

‘Futures Thinking’ to identify and address root causes of the issues that we face, and 

preventing, rather than reacting to, high risk events wherever possible. 

 

 Reflect: Use the advice given by the office of the Well-being of Future Generation’s 

Commissioner, Natural Resources Wales and others to focus our discussions as we 

take forward our steps. 

 

Page 24



 

11 

 

 Development: Explore and support joint opportunities for training and workforce 

development, such as secondment opportunities between our organisations. 

 

 Language: Support and promote the Welsh Language in all that we do, integrating the 

Welsh Language strategies of partners. 

We will apply these nine principles to all of our work as we take forward the steps that we 

have identified in support of our objective to make Denbighshire and Conwy a more 

equal place with less deprivation. These are things that we can do collectively over and 

above the existing roles and responsibilities of our individual members, and they will help 

us to define our actions and structure the detailed planning that will support this Plan’s 

implementation. They will also help us to hold ourselves to account by monitoring and 

measuring our progress and success.  

Page 25



 

12 

 

Well-being – Communities are happier, healthier and more resilient in 

the face of challenges, such as the Climate Change and Nature 

Emergency, or the rising cost of living. 

What do we know now? 

Our Well-being Assessment looks at emerging threats to health and well-being. Issues of 

specific concern are: 

 Developing resistance to antibiotics and other drugs and medicines. 

 The potential for the rapid spread of infectious diseases in an increasingly 

interdependent and interconnected world (pandemics). 

 The potential impact of Climate Change and extreme weather events on public health. 

 The impact of Covid-19 on emotional and mental-health (restrictions, changed 

response and anxiety associated with infection, and loss of social support structures 

for people). 

 Communities are facing significant challenges in meeting their living costs, with an 

increased risk of food and fuel poverty. 

 Long-term predictions suggest that these issues will only increase or get worse over 

time. 

Our communities expressed their desire to be supported and empowered to help tackle 

these issues with a community-led focus. One respondent said “I would like to see even 

more investment in resources to help the whole county tackle Climate Change and 

progress forward more quickly with carbon reduction solutions. I want to see Councils 

have the resources to help the community have an impact too, rather than just focusing on 

internal functions.” 

What steps can we take? 

In support of this area, below are some of the steps that we can collectively take forward 

as partners on the Public Services Board during the five-year duration of this plan: 

Page 26

https://conwyanddenbighshirelsb.org.uk/home/english-wellbeing-assessment/english-emerging-threats-to-health-and-well-being/


 

13 

 

 Engage with residents to improve equal access and signposting to the right 

information, advice, assistance and services that support people with what they need 

to thrive, including education, health and well-being, and employment. 

 Stimulate and support community groups to help people remain resilient; for example, 

supporting healthy lifestyles, or providing help with cost of living pressures. 

 Work with our partners to provide information, advice and support to those at risk of 

fuel or food poverty, which may include reducing costs and maximising income. We 

will also start to identify steps to safeguard food and energy in the longer-term and 

protect our natural resources. 

 Give support to sustainable and green transport plans that improve overall air quality, 

including active and healthy travel schemes that encourage walking and cycling. 

 Decrease carbon emissions and energy consumption, and increase renewable energy 

capacity. 

 Encourage and support communities to mitigate and cope with the impacts of Climate 

Change, bringing together the right expertise, including lived experience, to better 

inform delivery and decision-making. In particular, community engagement and an 

assessment of local Climate Change risk will help prioritise where adaption is needed. 

 Addressing the Nature Emergency and the well-being needs of communities, protect, 

restore and enhance biodiversity and natural habitats, whilst increasing and 

encouraging equal access to our natural environment. This includes access to green 

countryside spaces, and blue coastal spaces. 

Who will be involved in delivering our steps? 

All PSB partner organisations and potentially others including: 

 Citizen Advice 

 North Wales Social Care and Well-being Improvement Collaborative 

 Third sector organisations 

What levels of prevention might our steps achieve? 

Secondary prevention: Targeting action towards areas where there is a high risk of a 

problem occurring. A targeted approach, which cements the principle of progressive 

universalism.  

Page 27



 

14 

 

What could success look like? 

Short-term (1 to 5 years) Medium-Term (5 to 10) Long-Term (10+ years) 

Our understanding of the 

impact of climate change on 

our communities improves. 

When faced with an 

emergency climate event, 

harm to people or property 

has been reduced through 

clear advice and support. 

Residents are also able to 

access the advice and 

support that they need to 

support their health and 

well-being, and alleviate the 

impact of the rising cost of 

living.  

There is enhanced 

biodiversity and increased 

equal access to green 

countryside spaces and 

blue coastal spaces, 

benefitting the well-being of 

residents. 

Carbon emission from our 

estates decreases, and 

natural habitats are 

resilient. 

Hardship arising from 

poverty is alleviated, and 

the number of those facing 

fuel and food poverty 

decreases. 

The use of sustainable and 

active travel schemes 

increases. 

Planned and coordinated 

community engagement 

that is meaningful. 

 

Disruption from climate 

events is less prevalent. 

People and communities 

thrive, and are resilient to 

challenges. 

Long-term challenges are 

recognised and planned for. 

 

 

Links to other themes in our Well-being Plan 

Economy – There is a flourishing economy, supported by a skilled workforce fit for 

the future: 

Page 28



 

15 

 

Having a healthy economy, where people are in secure and rewarding employment, 

improves wellbeing and builds social and economic resilience. 

Equality – Those with protected characteristics face fewer barriers: 

Ensuring people from diverse backgrounds, seldom-heard groups and those at a socio-

economic disadvantage are heard and help shape decisions and services, improves 

wellbeing and builds social and cultural resilience.  

Housing – There is improved access to good quality housing: 

Good quality, affordable and energy efficient housing improves individual and community 

wellbeing and builds resilience against the rising cost of living, fuel poverty and climate 

change. 

How we will apply the 5 ways of working 

Collaboration 

Each PSB organisation recognises its individual and collective role to provide the advice 

and assistance our communities need to build their resilience and thrive. 

Involvement 

The PSB will continue to involve and engage with our communities to explore what 

information and support they need to build their social, cultural, economic and 

environmental resilience. 

Integration 

The PSB recognises that social, cultural, economic and environmental wellbeing are 

cross-cutting and will take an integrated approach to supporting its communities in building 

resilience and reducing deprivation in these areas.  

Prevention 

The PSB will support our communities to become more resilient and better prepared to 

respond to social, cultural, economic and environmental changes, preventing further 

declines in mental and physical wellbeing. 

Page 29



 

16 

 

Long-Term 

The PSB will support our communities by taking a balanced approach, ensuring that 

improving community wellbeing in the short term does not compromise building further 

resilience and reducing deprivation in the long term. 

How our steps will maximise our contribution to the Well-being Goals 

Prosperous 

By supporting access to advice, information and assistance that our communities need, 

the PSB will help alleviate the impact of the rising cost of living, maximise income and 

improve overall contribution to the local economy. 

Healthier 

By supporting access to advice, information and assistance that our communities need, 

the PSB will help people become better informed to make healthier lifestyle choices, 

leading to healthier lives. 

Resilient 

By supporting and influencing Climate Change mitigation and adaptation in our 

communities, the PSB will help people be better equipped and prepared for the impacts of 

climate change. 

Equal 

By supporting equal access to information, advice and services, the PSB will help our 

communities access the information and help they need in a way that does not create 

disadvantage.  

Cohesive Communities 

By continuing to involve and engage our communities, the PSB will help people feel 

connected and able to contribute to their communities in a range of ways. 

Culture and Welsh Language 

Page 30



 

17 

 

Our communities can access support in their language of choice.  The PSB will encourage 

and improve the use of Welsh language in everyday life.   

Globally Responsible 

Each PSB organisation recognises its individual and collective role to reduce greenhouse 

gas emissions and use of natural resources and protect the natural environment and 

habitats. The PSB will support our communities to help mitigate the global impacts of 

Climate Change. 

  

Page 31



 

18 

 

Economy – There is a flourishing economy, supported by a skilled 

workforce fit for the future. 

What do we know now? 

Our Well-being Assessment looks at employment opportunities in our counties. It tells us 

that: 

 It is not just the number of available jobs that is important, but also the types of 

employment opportunities on offer, and how well employers keep-up with changes in 

the global economy, as well as local priorities. Secure, well paid employment affects 

not just the economic well-being of people and communities, but can also help with 

mental well-being as it fosters a sense of purpose and a sense of belonging within 

society. 

 In addition to the mismatch between the number of jobs and number of working 

residents, the area has a significantly lower than average weekly wage for full-time 

jobs – £451 in Conwy, and £501 in Denbighshire (compared to £540 for Great Britain 

as a whole).  

 There are also higher proportions of part-time jobs on offer in the area than the 

national average – 46% of employees in Conwy and 39% of employees in 

Denbighshire are part-time, compared to 32% across Great Britain and 35% in Wales. 

Within the current economic climate, jobs and employment was an area of focus 

throughout our engagement. One respondent gave the following feedback when asked 

what could be improved in the area to meet future well-being goals: “help and support to 

get people into jobs and keep jobs. Would like to see more permanent lower level jobs in 

the area and not just seasonal work. More initiatives where Councils provide employment 

experience for people with limited work experience and employment experience for people 

with a disability.” 

What steps can we take? 

In support of this area, below are some of the steps that we can collectively take forward 

as partners on the Public Services Board during the five-year duration of this plan: 

Page 32

https://conwyanddenbighshirelsb.org.uk/home/english-wellbeing-assessment/english-local-employment-opportunities/


 

19 

 

 Work collaboratively with communities and partners to deliver projects and initiatives 

that will stimulate economic growth in specific sectors, including the green economy. 

This includes Ambition North Wales and the North Wales Growth Deal projects. 

 Maximise the benefits that come with our unique natural assets and grow our 

sustainable tourism offer. 

 Work with partners (including school, colleges and universities) to ensure that people 

of all ages, including those who are vulnerable or in our care, are resilient and 

prepared for employment, further education, or training. This includes looking at Green 

Skills for the future. 

 Provide greater opportunities for quality volunteering, work experience and 

apprenticeships.  

 Collectively promote public and third sector jobs to help with recruitment and retention. 

 Enact socially responsible public procurement, benefitting the local supply chain and 

promoting a circular economy locally. 

 Working regionally and within the context of the Wales Transport Strategy, we will 

enable those at a socio-economic disadvantage to access education, employment, 

services and activities. 

Who will be involved in delivering our steps? 

All PSB partners and potentially others including: 

 Schools, colleges, universities and youth services 

 Careers Wales 

 Department of Work and Pensions  

 Partnerships, such as the Regional Skills Partnership, Ambition North Wales, North 

Wales decarbonisation ambition board. 

What levels of prevention might our steps achieve? 

Secondary prevention: Targeting action towards areas where there is a high risk of a 

problem occurring. A targeted approach, which cements the principle of progressive 

universalism. 

Page 33



 

20 

 

What could success look like? 

Short-term (1 to 5 years) Medium-Term (5 to 10) Long-Term (10+ years) 

Those in need of 

employment are supported 

into work.  

There is an improved skills 

offer that enables people to 

access better paid 

employment. 

Businesses are attracted to, 

and thrive in Conwy and 

Denbighshire, utilising the 

strong skills base, and 

giving people the right 

opportunities for work. This 

includes a low carbon, 

regenerative economy, and 

sustainable green jobs. 

 

Our green, sustainable 

economy flourishes. 

The average household 

income increases. 

Links to other themes in our Well-being Plan 

Well-being – Communities are happier, healthier and more resilient in the face of 

challenges, such as the Climate Change and Nature Emergency, or the rising cost of 

living: 

Ensuring people have access to the information and assistance they need to help with the 

rising cost of living and food and fuel poverty and safeguarding food and natural resources 

in the long term, helps to improve the resilience of our local economy. 

Equality – Those with protected characteristics face fewer barriers: 

Ensuring people from diverse backgrounds, seldom-heard groups and those at a socio-

economic disadvantage have equal access to employment, learning and healthcare, helps 

to improve the resilience of our local economy.  

Housing – There is improved access to good quality housing: 

Sufficient provision of good quality, affordable, energy efficient housing, where people can 

live independently and healthily, helps to improve the resilience of the local economy.  

Page 34



 

21 

 

How we will apply the 5 ways of working 

Collaboration 

Each PSB organisation recognises its individual and collective role to promote public and 

third sector jobs to help with recruitment and retention. 

Involvement 

The PSB will engage with other agencies and partners to ensure a skilled and resilient 

workforce and stimulate growth in key sectors, including the environmental sector.  

Integration 

The PSB recognises that a flourishing local economy has a direct impact upon social, 

cultural and environmental wellbeing and will take an integrated approach to supporting its 

communities in building resilience and reducing deprivation in this area. 

Prevention 

The PSB will support our communities to become more resilient and better prepared to 

respond to economic changes, building a sustainable workforce by preventing rising 

unemployment and attracting young people to work in the region. 

Long-Term 

The PSB will support our communities in building a sustainable workforce with a strong 

skills base, supporting a thriving economy which attracts businesses to the region, giving 

people the right opportunities for work. 

How our steps will maximise our contribution to the Well-being Goals 

Prosperous 

By ensuring people of all ages are prepared for employment, further education or training, 

the PSB will help people acquire the skills and knowledge to get good quality jobs, which 

support local communities and the wider economy. 

Healthier 

Page 35



 

22 

 

By working with our communities and partners to build a sustainable workforce, the PSB 

will help people have access to secure and rewarding work and skills opportunities, 

contributing positively to their physical, mental and emotional well-being.  

Resilient 

By working with our communities and partners to stimulate economic growth in key 

sectors, the PSB will help to build a resilient workforce and flourishing economy.  

Equal 

By working with our communities and partners to provide equal opportunities for 

employment, further education and training, the PSB will help people of all abilities and 

backgrounds have the opportunity to achieve their potential. 

Cohesive Communities 

By working with our communities and partners in providing opportunities for employment, 

further education and training, the PSB will help support people to live and work in their 

communities, enhancing the local economy.  

Culture and Welsh Language 

By working to maximise the benefits of our unique natural assets and sustainable tourism, 

the PSB will help protect the region’s culture and heritage, including the Welsh language. 

Globally Responsible 

By working with our communities and partners to develop a strong local economy, 

including the green economy and socially responsible procurement, the PSB will help the 

local economy mitigate the global impacts of climate change. 

  

Page 36



 

23 

 

Equality – Those with protected characteristics face fewer barriers. 

What do we know now? 

Our Well-being Assessment looks at equality and diversity within our communities in 

Conwy and Denbighshire. It tells us that: 

 Those from diverse backgrounds or with a disability often face barriers to employment 

learning and health care. Our population is becoming more diverse and we need to 

reflect this in the services that we deliver, to ensure equality of access and opportunity 

for all. 

 We need to better reflect the diversity of our populations when involving people in 

decision making, ensuring representation from all groups. 

 People with protected characteristics are more likely to live in the most deprived 10% 

of Lower Layer Super Output Areas (LSOA) in Wales. They are most likely to suffer 

from socio-economic disadvantage, and will have been disproportionally affected by 

the impact of the pandemic. They are also, therefore, vulnerable to inflationary cost of 

living pressures. 

 The impacts of Climate Change will also increase inequalities within our communities. 

Our engagement from seldom heard groups suggests that we need to work collaboratively 

to ensure we do not overburden the same communities with numerous requests for the 

same, or similar information and that we feedback regarding the actions taken on the basis 

of their engagement. 

What steps can we take? 

In support of this area, below are some of the steps that we can collectively take forward 

as partners on the Public Services Board during the five-year duration of this plan: 

 Support the Welsh Government’s Anti-Racist Wales Action Plan, to help realise the 

vision of Wales as an anti-racist nation and understand what that looks like for our 

communities. 

Page 37

https://conwyanddenbighshirelsb.org.uk/home/english-wellbeing-assessment/english-equality-and-diversity-community-cohesion/


 

24 

 

 Reduce inequalities by ensuring that the experiences of people from diverse 

backgrounds, seldom-heard groups, and those at a socio-economic disadvantage are 

heard and inform decision making and shape our services. 

 Address the emotional burden of those living with the effects of poverty and social 

exclusion, treating them with the respect and dignity they deserve. 

 Working with our partners and networks, we will work to address gaps in our Well-

being Assessment, commissioning quality research and engagement. 

 Foster community cohesion by ensuring people are protected from harm, abuse and 

exploitation. 

 Ensure that the transition to a net zero Wales is equitable and fair. 

Who will be involved in delivering our steps? 

All PSB partners and potentially others including: 

 Citizen Advice 

 Joseph Rowntree Foundation 

 North Wales Social Care and Well-being Improvement Collaborative 

 Third sector organisations 

What levels of prevention might our steps achieve? 

Primary prevention: Building resilience – creating the conditions in which problems do not 

arise in the future. A universal approach. 

What could success look like? 

Short-term (1 to 5 years) Medium-Term (5 to 10) Long-Term (10+ years) 

Challenges facing 

community cohesion and 

personal safety, and gaps 

in service or advice 

provision that 

The co-production and 

shaping of services through 

the involvement of those 

from seldom-heard groups 

is embedded practice. 

Inequality is removed from 

service provision, allowing 

everyone to access the 

services that they need to 

thrive. 

Page 38



 

25 

 

Short-term (1 to 5 years) Medium-Term (5 to 10) Long-Term (10+ years) 

disadvantages those with 

protected characteristics or 

those who are at a socio-

economic disadvantage, 

are identified with any 

immediate solutions put in 

place. 

We better understand and 

act upon the 

disproportionate impacts of 

climate change on those 

experiencing deprivation, 

and manage our transition 

to a net zero Wales fairly 

and equitably. 

People are confident that 

public services will act to 

protect and help them. 

The most vulnerable 

communities who are 

exposed to multiple health 

inequalities are surrounded 

by an environment that 

makes managing and 

taking actions to improve 

health and well-being easier 

– for example, reducing 

communities’ exposure to 

air pollution and flooding. 

All residents are safe from 

harm, abuse or 

exploitations. 

Those experiencing 

deprivation are safeguarded 

from the impacts of Climate 

Change. 

Links to other themes in our Well-being Plan 

Well-being – Communities are happier, healthier and more resilient in the face of 

challenges, such as the Climate Change and Nature Emergency, or the rising cost of 

living: 

Ensuring people from diverse backgrounds, seldom-heard groups and those at a socio-

economic disadvantage have fair and equal access to the information and assistance they 

need to help with the rising cost of living and food and fuel poverty and safeguarding food 

and natural resources in the long term, helps to reduce in equalities and remove barriers. 

Economy – There is a flourishing economy, supported by a skilled workforce fit for 

the future: 

Ensuring people from diverse backgrounds, seldom-heard groups and those at a socio-

economic disadvantage have equal access to employment, learning and healthcare, helps 

to reduce inequalities and remove barriers. 

Page 39



 

26 

 

Housing – There is improved access to good quality housing: 

Ensuring people from diverse backgrounds, seldom-heard groups and those at a socio-

economic disadvantage have fair and equal access to good quality, affordable, energy 

efficient housing, where people can live independently and healthily, helps to reduce 

inequalities and remove barriers. 

How we will apply the 5 ways of working 

Collaboration 

Each PSB organisation recognises its individual and collective role to reduce inequalities 

and ensure that people from diverse backgrounds, seldom-heard groups and those at 

socio-economic disadvantage have the opportunities to inform decision-making and shape 

services. 

Involvement 

The PSB will continue to engage and ensure that the lived experience of people from 

diverse communities inform decision making and shape our services. 

Integration 

The PSB recognises that equality of access for our communities is integral to delivery of 

our priorities and therefore underpins delivery of our Wellbeing Plan. 

Prevention 

The PSB will work with our partners and networks to carry out quality research and 

engagement to address gaps in our Wellbeing Assessment with the aim of continuing to 

prevent future inequalities and remove barriers. 

Long-Term 

The PSB will work with partners, networks and communities to ensure inequality is 

removed from service provision, allowing everyone to access the advice, assistance and 

services that they need to thrive. 

Page 40



 

27 

 

How our steps will maximise our contribution to the Well-being Goals 

Prosperous 

By removing barriers and reducing inequalities, the PSB will help people of all abilities and 

backgrounds have the opportunity to achieve their potential. 

Healthier 

By involving and engaging with people from diverse communities in decision making and 

shaping services, the PSB will help people face fewer health inequalities. 

Resilient 

By working with our communities and partners to reduce inequality and remove barriers, 

the PSB will help to address social exclusion, making communities more resilient.   

Equal 

By working with our partners to reduce inequality and remove barriers, the PSB will 

support our communities and all those who live in them, irrespective of background or 

circumstances. 

Cohesive Communities 

By working with our partners to protect people from harm, abuse and exploitation, the PSB 

will help to foster community cohesion. 

Culture and Welsh Language 

By working with our partners to reduce inequality and remove barriers, the PSB will help to 

support the diverse cultures within our communities and protect the Welsh language.  

Globally Responsible 

By supporting our communities to respond to the impacts of climate change, the PSB will 

help to ensure the steps taken to reduce greenhouse gas emissions are fair and 

proportionate.  

Page 41



 

28 

 

Housing – There is improved access to good quality housing. 

What do we know now? 

Our Well-being Assessment looks at the provision of housing in our counties. It tells us 

that: 

 Good quality and low carbon housing is vital for individual and community well-being, 

providing security, privacy, good health, and space for personal identity, growth and 

development. 

 Demand for homelessness support has increased significantly in recent years, which 

includes the overall amount of casework involved in preventative work. As finances are 

squeezed and costs rise, we will see further rises in homelessness numbers. 

 A person’s physical environment, including access to green space, plays a key role; 

with poor health associated with homelessness, poor quality accommodation, and fuel 

poverty. Risk factors for poor mental health disproportionately affect people from 

higher risk and marginalised groups, including homeless people. A recent study found 

more patients who died by suicide were reported as having economic problems, 

including homelessness (Centre for Mental Health and Safety, 2016). 

 In the year ending March 2021, 439 new homes were built in the area (310 in Conwy 

County Borough, 124 in Denbighshire), despite Local Development Plans (LDPS) 

predicting an annual new dwelling requirement of about 950 homes would be required 

across the two local authorities. 

 Access to affordable housing was particularly highlighted as a concern among 

residents through our County Conversation. In August 2021, the average house price 

for a property in Conwy County Borough was £202,485, and £181,538 in 

Denbighshire. 

This direct quote taken from the online analysis, where the respondent was asked what 

could be improved, gives a flavour of the feedback and concerns given throughout the 

engagement and in particular the public and councillor focus groups. “More availability of 

affordable housing for local people. House prices have increased rapidly over the last year 

and are out of reach of many, including young people who are unable to stay in their 

communities.” 

Page 42

https://conwyanddenbighshirelsb.org.uk/home/english-wellbeing-assessment/english-providing-housing-including-affordable-housing/


 

29 

 

What steps can we take? 

In support of this area, below are some of the steps that we can collectively take forward 

as partners on the Public Services Board during the five-year duration of this plan: 

 Support the Welsh Government’s Rapid Rehousing approach to prevent 

homelessness and ensure that any instances of it are rare, brief, and unrepeated. 

 Review the amount of available housing in our county to ensure that there is quality 

provision that meets the needs of residents, assisting them to lead independent lives 

in appropriate accommodation for as long as possible. 

 Identify the barriers related to people’s immediate environment, such as green and 

blue spaces, that affects their quality of life and civic participation. 

 Work with our communities to identify and overcome barriers to housing, ensuring 

equal access to advice and information on available options and routes to housing. 

 Advocate standards of housing that supports the good health of people and families 

living in them, including promotion of low carbon housing that are affordable to run and 

resilient to the impacts of Climate Change. 

 Bring together new and old partners to review innovative approaches to housing 

provision and upgrading. 

Who will be involved in delivering our steps? 

All PSB partners and potentially other bodies, including: 

 Welsh Water 

 Registered Social Landlords 

 Healthy Housing 

 Private Rented Sector 

 Energy saving trust Wales 

 Building Control 

What levels of prevention might our steps achieve? 

Tertiary prevention: Intervening once there is a problem, to stop it getting worse and 

prevent it reoccurring in the future. An intervention approach. 

Page 43



 

30 

 

What could success look like? 

Short-term (1 to 5 years) Medium-Term (5 to 10) Long-Term (10+ years) 

Residents are better 

informed about housing 

options and routes to 

housing. 

Safe housing. 

Those facing homelessness 

are helped into 

accommodation within a 

reasonable timeframe. 

The number and quality of 

housing increases. 

Instances of homelessness 

reduce. 

 

Housing need will be met. 

Instances of homelessness 

will be rare, brief and 

unrepeated. 

Homes are more energy 

efficient. 

Links to other themes in our Well-being Plan 

Well-being – Communities are happier, healthier and more resilient in the face of 

challenges, such as the Climate Change and Nature Emergency, or the rising cost of 

living: 

Ensuring people have access to the information and assistance they need will help them 

access the right housing solutions which enhance their quality of life and wellbeing. 

Equality – Those with protected characteristics face fewer barriers: 

Ensuring people from diverse backgrounds, seldom-heard groups and those at a socio-

economic disadvantage are involved in decision making and shaping services and are not 

socially excluded will help them access the right housing solutions.  

Economy – There is a flourishing economy, supported by a skilled workforce fit for 

the future: 

Ensuring a sustainable and skilled workforce will help provide the housing sector with the 

resources it needs to meet the housing demand. 

Page 44



 

31 

 

How we will apply the 5 ways of working 

Collaboration 

Each PSB organisation recognises its individual and collective role to help our 

communities access good quality housing and support homelessness prevention. 

Involvement 

The PSB will engage with other agencies and partners in this area to support access to 

quality housing and homelessness prevention. 

Integration 

The PSB recognises that access to good quality housing has a direct impact upon social, 

cultural, economic and environmental wellbeing and will take an integrated approach to 

supporting its communities in building resilience and reducing deprivation in this area. 

Prevention 

The PSB will work with partners and networks to help reduce and prevent homelessness 

and remove barriers which negatively impact people’s quality of life and civic participation, 

further preventing wellbeing decline. 

Long-Term 

The PSB will work with partners, networks and communities to ensure housing provision is 

sustainable and has a positive impact on people’s lives. 

How our steps will maximise our contribution to the Well-being Goals 

Prosperous 

By supporting the provision of good quality housing which people can afford, the PSB will 

help improve people’s quality of life. 

Healthier 

Page 45



 

32 

 

By supporting the provision of good quality, affordable housing, the PSB will help to 

improve community well-being, security, privacy, good health, and space for personal 

identity, growth and development. 

Resilient 

By supporting the provision of good quality, affordable housing, the PSB will help to 

reduce deprivation associated with homelessness and poor quality housing, making 

communities more resilient. 

Equal 

By supporting equal access to housing related advice, information and assistance, the 

PSB will help to reduce housing related inequalities and remove barriers. 

Cohesive Communities 

By supporting the provision of good quality, affordable housing, the PSB will help people 

being able to stay and live in their local community. 

Culture and Welsh Language 

By supporting local people to stay in their local communities, the PSB will help protect and 

conserve the Welsh culture and language. 

Globally Responsible 

By supporting the provision of good quality, energy efficient housing, the PSB will help 

people play their part in reducing global greenhouse gas emissions and mitigate climate 

change.  

Page 46



 

33 

 

Delivery of the plan and monitoring progress 

In its Programme Board role, the delivery of this Plan will be monitored by the PSB through 

regular highlight and progress reports to it meetings. As part of our monitoring 

arrangements, we will produce an annual report detailing the progress made by the PSB 

to achieve and deliver the Well-being Plan. Reporting will focus on activities discussed by 

the Board, and the progress of any sub-groups (to be determined) set-up to deliver on 

specific streams of work. The Well-being Assessment sets the baseline for the success of 

this plan, and we will use indicators already highlighted there to measure the progress of 

our activities. 

A Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee also exists between Conwy and Denbighshire, 

and is responsible for scrutinising the effectiveness of the PSB’s governance, the 

decisions that it makes, and the actions that it takes. The intention is to place responsibility 

for challenge and accountability locally. 

On-going conversation 

Engagement through our County Conversation was an important part of gathering local 

views on well-being within communities. We want to continue engaging with people and 

communities across Conwy and Denbighshire in a meaningful way, as well as with the 

workforce of our organisations. It is vital that we take account of the importance of 

involving people with an interest in achieving the well-being goals, and of ensuring that 

those persons reflect the diversity of our populations.  

We will take additional steps outside of meetings to ensure that the public and professional 

voice is heard and continues to help shape the Well-being Plan going forward. Each PSB 

partner organisation has its own mechanism for engagement, including digital engagement 

through social media. The PSB has committed to sharing key messages between PSB 

organisations on engagement events, as well as promoting PSB activities. However, we 

will also explore opportunities to engage cohesively as partners around our shared 

themes, and enabling a more holistic approach to action. 

All our formal meetings are held in public and are open for anyone to observe. For a list of 

dates and venues please visit our website. 

Page 47

https://conwyanddenbighshirelsb.org.uk/agendasandminutes/


This page is intentionally left blank



Mae'r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg. This document is available in Welsh. 

 

 

 

Conwy and Denbighshire  

Public Services Board 

 

Well-being Plan 2023 to 2028: 

Well-being Impact Assessment 

 

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, 

environmental and cultural well-being of Conwy, Denbighshire, Wales and the world. 

  

Page 49



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
2 

Assessment Number: 1115 

Brief description: This document outlines the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services 

Board’s Well-being Plan (2023 to 2028) under the Well-being of Future Generations 

(Wales) Act 2015, which seeks to make Conwy and Denbighshire a more equal place 

with less deprivation. 

Localities affected by the proposal: Conwy and Denbighshire Counties 

Who will be affected by the proposal? The Plan covers both the counties of Conwy and 

Denbighshire and will affect communities, businesses, visitors, public sector partners 

(regional and local), including children and young people and people with protected 

characteristics. 

Was this impact assessment completed as a group? Yes 

  

Page 50



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
3 

Summary and Conclusion 

Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important 

to consider how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This 

means that we must act "in a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the 

present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their 

own needs." 

 Score for the sustainability of the approach: 3 out of 4 stars 

 Actual score: 32 / 36 

Summary for each Sustainable Development principle 

 Long term 

The Plan is aspirational and its development has stretched our thinking around many 

of the key issues it seeks to address. Our prioritisation work has maintained a focus 

on addressing the long- term root-causes to deprivation. However, the Plan's success 

will be hampered by capacity and resource to deliver meaningful long-term change, 

and the suggested steps will need further scoping and agreement by the PSB to make 

progress; this includes arrangements for securing the legacy of any action. 

Prevention 

The Plan actively seeks to promote the resilience of individuals and communities 

against the impacts of Climate Change. The promotion of the well-being and safety of 

individuals and communities is also prevalent throughout, particularly where inequality 

currently exists. 

Integration 

This is a partnership plan that integrates the objectives of members of the Conwy and 

Denbighshire Public Services Board, and has been developed with their input 

throughout. Steps to be taken in the future will be delivered through the agreement of 

the collective PSB. 

Page 51



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
4 

Collaboration 

Considerable work has been undertaken with partners throughout 2021 and 2022 to 

develop the current Well-being Plan, with excellent contributions being made through 

multiple prioritisation workshops, and particularly in the later stages of developing the 

final draft. It is hoped that the energy that has brought this Plan together will now 

continue through to the development of our steps and their implementation. 

Involvement 

We are confident that we are applying all ten principles, and the commissioned work 

to engage seldom heard groups continues to be an important part of our approach 

and evidence base. Our engagement has faced challenges (social distancing, online 

meeting fatigue), but the quality of feedback received has been excellent. It is a firm 

principle in the new Plan that the PSB will build on its engagement work and involve 

people the delivery of its steps. 

Summary of impact 

Well-being Goal Overall Impact 

A prosperous Wales Positive 

A resilient Wales Positive 

A healthier Wales Positive 

A more equal Wales Positive 

A Wales of cohesive communities Positive 

Page 52



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
5 

Well-being Goal Overall Impact 

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving 

Welsh language 

Neutral 

A globally responsible Wales Positive 

Main conclusions 

We should continue to revisit the impact assessment on a regular basis and review 

our findings to inform the approach to further development engagement and 

consultation on our Well-being Plan. Engagement with seldom heard groups (serving 

and ex-armed forces, offenders and ex-offenders, in addition to people with protected 

characteristics), across the region, should continue. We should also use the impact 

assessment as an aide memoir, using the topics and the tooltips to inform our 

engagement and well-being assessment. 

The opportunities highlighted at the end of each sustainable development principle 

and each of the seven well-being goals should be noted and considered thoroughly. It 

is also important to note that our level of influence and control varies across some of 

the steps that we have identified, and this will affect our ability to bring about positive 

impacts in some areas. So too will the economic climate and capacity of partners to 

deliver impact on the success of our Plan. 

  

Page 53



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
6 

The likely impact on Conwy, Denbighshire, Wales and the world 

A prosperous Wales 

 Overall Impact 

Positive 

Justification for impact 

We are estimating a positive impact because the Well-being Plan is proposing more 

focussed work to support a green economy, remove barriers to work, and to support 

people to secure better employment. The Wales Centre for Public Policy has 

produced research on the impact of Covid-19 and Brexit on economic well-being and 

this is included in our well-being assessment. 

Further actions required 

We will need to work with businesses more closely, and link into regional work via the 

North Wales Economic Ambition Board (NWEAB). There is the potential to maximise 

skills development around a low carbon economy in particular. 

Positive impacts identified: 

A low carbon society 

Supporting a green economy is a core part of the Plan. The extent of positive impacts 

will need to be assessed once detailed actions are agreed and projects scoped. 

However, following the leadership set by NWEAB should lead to positive outcomes. 

Quality communications, infrastructure and transport 

Support for sustainable and active travel schemes is identified within the Plan. 

 

 

Page 54



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
7 

Economic development 

Sustainable tourism, green economy, social economy, and the growth deal feature 

within the Plan. 

Quality skills for the long term 

Ensuring that we have the right skills for the future is an important aspect of our Plan in 

support of the Economy. If we do this well, our skills base will attract new businesses, 

whilst helping the prosperity of individuals. 

Quality jobs for the long term 

Again, our Plan pledges support for the economy and removing barriers to work for 

those with protected characteristics, or who are at a socio-economic disadvantage. 

Childcare 

There is no support directly offered in support of childcare within our Plan, but this may 

be something that the PSB considers when considering steps that it can take to 

remove barriers that people face to attend work, employment, education or 

healthcare. In taking forward any steps the PSB must consider any disproportionate 

impact that may incur in that regard. 

Negative impacts identified: 

A low carbon society 

There should be no negative impacts as a result of our work, but the PSB must remain 

vigilant of any potential increases in Carbon as a result of its work. 

Quality communications, infrastructure and transport 

None identified at present (this should continue to be reviewed). 

Economic development 

 

Page 55



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
8 

None identified at present (this should continue to be reviewed). 

Quality skills for the long term 

There is widespread recognition, which has been highlighted in our well-being 

assessment, that women and people with protected characteristics and people 

experiencing socio-economic disadvantage are less likely to benefit from opportunities 

from the green sector. 

Quality jobs for the long term 

The draft well-being assessment still lacks up to date analysis about local jobs. 

Childcare 

The draft well-being assessment includes some analysis of how childcare can be a 

barrier for women in particular, who may disproportionately arrange and ferry children 

to/from providers (this could impact active travel and visibility in the workplace). 

The new childcare provision cited above brings with it questions around sustainability, 

for carbon, and overall provision across the sector. These should be assessed in more 

detail within each individual well-being impact assessment. 

  

Page 56



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
9 

A resilient Wales 

 Overall Impact 

Positive 

Justification for impact 

Environmental well-being is a key feature of our Well-being Assessment, the 

engagement feedback that we have received, and the content of the Well-being Plan as 

a consequence. 

Further actions required 

Further work is needed to understand the risks that are faced by our communities. 

Most recently we have had to adjust our thinking around climate risk resilience to 

include resilience to hotter, drier summers, for example. 

Positive impacts identified: 

Biodiversity and the natural environment 

The Well-being Plan has made a commitment to mitigating the impacts of Climate 

Change and the Nature Emergency. 

Biodiversity in the built environment 

The Well-being Plan has made a commitment to mitigating the impacts of Climate 

Change and the Nature Emergency. 

Reducing waste, reusing and recycling 

The Plan does seek to encourage a circular economy, but currently has no defined 

plans around reducing, reusing or recycling waste. 

Reduced energy/fuel consumption 

 

Page 57



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
10 

Energy efficient housing, alleviating fuel poverty, and choosing sustainable / active 

travel feature in the Plan. It is also worth noting that this was a consideration throughout 

our engagement and consultation. We didn't print excessive paper copies of our 

surveys, due to the environmental impacts. 

People’s awareness of the environment and biodiversity 

From our engagement, we have found that people feel strongly about being 

empowered to tackle climate change, and were particularly vocal about active travel. 

We want to keep people involved and harness their enthusiasm as we take this plan 

forward. 

Flood risk management 

The plan will seek to identify those communities most at risk of the impacts of climate 

change and encourage / support their resilience against future climate events. 

Negative impacts identified: 

Biodiversity and the natural environment 

There should be no negative impacts as a result of our work, but the PSB must remain 

vigilant of any potential increases in Carbon as a result of its work. 

Biodiversity in the built environment 

There should be no negative impacts as a result of our work, but the PSB must remain 

vigilant of any potential increases in Carbon as a result of its work. 

Reducing waste, reusing and recycling 

None identified at present (this should continue to be reviewed). 

Reduced energy/fuel consumption 

Our well-being assessment shows that some people, particularly those experiencing 

socio-economic disadvantage, may be less likely to benefit from schemes to reduce 

Page 58



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
11 

their carbon footprint and reduce their energy bills. EV cars are likely to remain within 

the reach of those with a sizeable disposable income for a while yet. 

People’s awareness of the environment and biodiversity 

Some people are vocal about wildflower meadows and see these as an eyesore. This 

needs to be resolved. 

Flood risk management 

None identified at present (this should continue to be reviewed). 

  

Page 59



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
12 

A healthier Wales 

 Overall Impact 

Positive 

Justification for impact 

The Well-being Plan is pledging to support happier, healthier and more resilient 

communities and should positively contribute to all of the above areas. 

Further actions required 

Topics such as mental-well-being should be kept under review as we continue to 

emerge from the pandemic, but move into a space with increased stresses around cost 

of living. There may be new evidence to consider. Constantly reviewing and assessing 

our intelligence is, however, a core part of the Plan. 

Positive impacts identified: 

A social and physical environment that encourage and support health and well-being 

This now features strongly in the Plan and cuts across many, if not all, of the themes. 

There are also a range of steps that aim to secure better health and well-being 

outcomes for disadvantaged or marginalised groups. 

Access to good quality, healthy food 

There are specific steps identified within the Plan that seek to alleviate food poverty. 

People’s emotional and mental well-being 

The Plan specifically focusses on securing better well-being outcomes for people, 

particularly those dealing with the emotional burden of living with the effects of poverty 

and social exclusion. 

 

Page 60



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
13 

Access to healthcare 

Access to health advice and services is a focus within the Well-being Plan. Waiting 

lists, and the impact these have on service delivery, staff well-being, in addition to the 

health and well-being of patients is likely to be subject to further analysis. 

Participation in leisure opportunities 

Sustainable and active travel features, as does increasing access to green 

countryside spaces and blue coastal spaces. 

Negative impacts identified: 

A social and physical environment that encourage and support health and well-being 

None identified at present (this should continue to be reviewed). 

Access to good quality, healthy food 

None identified at present (this should continue to be reviewed). 

People’s emotional and mental well-being 

Some groups may be at risk of worse emotional and mental well-being as a result of 

the social distancing measures of Covid-19. The plan, as it is worked up into more 

detail, will need to consider how some interventions will need to be targeted to be 

effective. 

Access to healthcare 

None identified at present (this should continue to be reviewed). 

Participation in leisure opportunities 

Some people may be less likely to participate either because of access issues (cost, 

transport, living in a rural area) or perhaps due to accessibility barriers for people with 

protected characteristics. 

  

Page 61



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
14 

A more equal Wales 

 Overall Impact 

Positive 

Justification for impact 

Overall there is a greater focus in Well-being Plan around mobilising collective 

resources to tackle poverty, hence the overall impact being positive. However, it is not 

clear currently how any proposed areas of focus will truly reduce poverty (increase 

household incomes) given the turbulence of the geopolitics and the global economy. 

Further actions required 

There has been considerable discussion about how experiences of Covid-19, and now 

the cost of living crisis will have exacerbated inequality – although the consequences 

are not yet fully understood. We will need to continually review our intelligence as we 

take our Plan forward. 

Positive impacts identified: 

Improving the well-being of people with protected characteristics. The nine protected 

characteristics are: age; disability; gender reassignment; marriage or civil partnership; 

pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation 

The Well-being Plan has a particular focus on addressing the inequalities faced by 

those with protected characteristics, or who are at a socio-economic disadvantage. 

Above all it seeks to remove barriers and reduce harms, exploitation and abuse 

experienced by people, ensuring that their voices are heard and that we act on 

intelligence informed by lived experiences. 

People who suffer discrimination or disadvantage 

 

Page 62



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
15 

The Well-being Plan includes proposals to support marginalised or seldom heard 

groups. The draft well-being assessment includes analyses to consider the well-being 

of (some) marginalised groups, such as refugees for example. There is also, while 

limited, a little more understanding of the long-term resilience of people who suffer 

discrimination and disadvantage due to climate change for example. 

People affected by socio-economic disadvantage and unequal outcomes 

Deprivation and tackling poverty is featuring strongly in the Well-being Plan, with a 

particular focus on reducing the impacts of poverty (e.g. hunger and rising fuel costs) 

and improving opportunities for skills. 

Areas affected by socio-economic disadvantage 

The draft well-being assessment includes analysis at a smaller local area level (both in 

terms of data and engagement feedback). There is no specific geographic area of 

focus at present, although one will likely emerge as specific steps are developed. 

Negative impacts identified: 

Improving the well-being of people with protected characteristics. The nine protected 

characteristics are: age; disability; gender reassignment; marriage or civil partnership; 

pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation 

The well-being assessment specifically highlighted disabled people has having poorer 

well-being. We will need to critically review our steps to see whether they will enhance 

or pose further challenges to people with protected characteristics as actions are 

developed further. 

People who suffer discrimination or disadvantage 

The draft well-being assessment includes analyses to consider the well-being of 

(some) marginalised groups, such as refugees. However, this is limited, and reflects, in 

part, challenges we faced with engagement. There is also, while limited, a little more 

understanding of the long-term resilience of people who suffer discrimination and 

disadvantage to climate change, for example. 

Page 63



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
16 

Some of our steps may not be able to partly, let alone, fully alleviate poverty and 

disadvantage given the turbulence in the wider global economy. 

People affected by socio-economic disadvantage and unequal outcomes 

As already stated, the impacts of the pledges may not be able to partly, let alone, fully 

alleviate poverty and disadvantage given the turbulence in the wider global economy. 

Areas affected by socio-economic disadvantage 

There is no specific geographic area of focus at present, although one will likely 

emerge as specific pledges are developed. As stated elsewhere, some interventions 

will need to be targeted to ensure the benefits are felt by the people/places needing 

them most. 

  

Page 64



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
17 

A Wales of cohesive communities  

Overall Impact 

Positive 

Justification for impact 

There are a great many positive contributions within the above headings as a result of 

commitments made within this Plan. Although community cohesion is not directly 

addressed, many of the steps we will take should lead should support that tangential 

benefit. 

Further actions required 

These aspects may need more extended discussion as we go forward to determine 

any negative impacts, as well as opportunities to maximise collective efforts to support 

cohesive communities over the longer term. We must too better understand how the 

experiences of Covid-19 and the current cost of living crisis have exacerbated 

inequality that may lead to poor community cohesion. 

Positive impacts identified: 

Safe communities and individuals 

The Well-being Plan emphasises the ongoing commitment of partners to safeguarding 

vulnerable in our counties. Homelessness, and good housing also features, alongside 

steps that focus on supporting community initiatives and resilience. 

Community participation and resilience 

Again, this is a key principal that can be found in the How We Will Work section of the 

plan, and throughout we reference our desire to work with communities to maximise 

the benefits from the steps we take, particularly with regard to community resilience. 

The attractiveness of the area 

 

Page 65



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
18 

The steps we have pledged in support of our natural environment and the improvement 

of access to green countryside spaces and blue coastal spaces should have a positive 

impact. 

Connected communities 

The Well-being Plan does not want to isolate or exacerbate inequalities. We want to 

better understand where there are barriers to connected communities and address the 

reasons why. The plan also pledges to support sustainable and active travel schemes 

to help improve connectivity. 

Rural resilience 

Again, addressing inequalities is a key aspect of the plan, and this includes rural 

inequality and poverty. 

Negative impacts identified: 

Safe communities and individuals 

None identified at present (this should continue to be reviewed). 

Community participation and resilience 

None identified at present (this should continue to be reviewed). 

The attractiveness of the area 

Wildflower meadows remain contentious with some residents regarding them as an 

eyesore. There will be work that needs to be done here to bring people along with us 

on our journey to environmental good health and sustainability. 

Connected communities 

Our control in securing better phone signal and broadband is limited and likely to fall 

outside the scope of this Plan. 

 

Page 66



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
19 

Rural resilience 

There will be no negative impacts as a result of this Well-being Plan on the longer term 

resilience of rural areas, and should seek to safeguard vital rural assets where 

possible. 

  

Page 67



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
20 

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 

 Overall Impact 

Neutral 

Justification for impact 

The overall impact is expected to be neutral as the Plan's focus is on addressing 

inequality, not advancing language or cultural strategies. However, as noted, there are 

opportunities for partners to integrate their Welsh language strategies and continue to 

support the promotion of the language. 

Further actions required 

Further discussion needed, particularly at a North Wales Economic Ambition Board 

level. There could be tensions across the region with some areas wanting to limit 

tourism and others wanting to stimulate more tourism. We may need to pay more 

attention to the rural economy and the importance of agriculture to culture. The PSB 

must be wary not to clash with cultural regeneration work being undertaken by 

partners elsewhere and should seek to integrate where possible with the steps that it 

takes forward. 

Positive impacts identified: 

People using Welsh 

The Well-being Plan contains within the How We Will Work section a principle that the 

PSB will support and promote the Welsh Language in all that we do. This will be key in 

particular as we Impact Assess our decisions going forward. 

Promoting the Welsh language 

 

Page 68



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
21 

As stated above, the Well-being Plan contains within the How We Will Work section a 

principle that the PSB will support and promote the Welsh Language in all that we do. 

The PSB should proactively consider this requirement as it takes its steps forward. 

Culture and heritage 

The new Plan does not give specific focus to Culture and Heritage, but these things 

could play a part within the work we take forward to enhance our natural assets, and 

support the well-being of individuals through community initiatives. 

Negative impacts identified: 

People using Welsh 

None identified at present (this should continue to be reviewed). 

Promoting the Welsh language 

None identified at present (this should continue to be reviewed). 

Culture and heritage 

The PSB must be wary not to clash with cultural regeneration work being undertaken 

by partners elsewhere and should seek to integrate where possible with the steps that it 

takes forward. 

  

Page 69



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
22 

A globally responsible Wales 

 Overall Impact 

Positive 

Justification for impact 

The Well-being Plan sets out clearly the steps that the PSB can take in support of 

adaption and mitigation against Climate Change, including socially and 

environmentally responsible procurement. 

Further actions required 

The PSB's Well-being Plan has been produced through collaboration. There should be 

no conflict between the plans and strategies of our partner organisations and that of the 

PSB, integrating well our collective ambition to address deprivation and inequality as a 

partnership body. We must continue to foster the environment and networks that 

promote meaningful engagement and communication with our partners and 

communities, supporting a culture where co-production and involvement thrives. 

Positive impacts identified: 

Local, national, international supply chains 

In line with the draft social partnerships Bill, the latest draft of the Well-being Plan 

makes a specific pledge around procurement and securing community benefits. 

Human rights 

Preservation of Human Rights are a core part of partner procurement and HR policies 

currently. Our commitments around equalities within this Plan emphasises ongoing 

support as part of Wales's declaration as a Nation of Sanctuary. 

 

 

Page 70



Well-being Impact Assessment 

 
23 

Broader service provision in the local area or the region 

The Well-being Plan will set out our commitment as partners within the Conwy and 

Denbighshire sub- region to address deprivation and inequality. There are also strong 

ties between PSBs across the region. It will support a shared analysis and narrative 

around long term trends, opportunities and aspirations in this important area of work. 

Reducing climate change 

Reducing climate change is a core part of the well-being assessment, and was a 

particular feature of engagement feedback. As a consequence, our Well-being Plan 

has a clear focus on mitigating the impacts of Climate Change. 

Negative impacts identified: 

Local, national, international supply chains 

We will need to work seamlessly with partners and Welsh Government to support small 

and medium sized businesses to ensure they are prepared and well-positioned for the 

changes. 

Human rights 

None identified at present (this should continue to be reviewed). 

Broader service provision in the local area or the region 

In terms of our evidence base, there are some gaps across topics, which are identified 

very clearly in our well-being assessment. These gaps are often due to partners 

experiencing capacity issues while they deliver business as usual in addition to the 

additional demands placed upon them by Covid-19. These capacity issues may also 

hamper the success of our delivery. 

Reducing climate change 

None identified at present (this should continue to be reviewed). 

 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

09 Tachwedd 2022 

Annwyl Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Conwy a Sir Ddinbych, 

Adborth Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru ar gynllun llesiant drafft 

Diolch am roi’r cyfle i Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru (CNC) ymateb i amcan llesiant drafft Conwy 

a Sir Ddinbych a’r gwrthrychol i wneud “Conwy a Sir Ddinbych yn lle mwy cyfartal gyda llai 

o amddifadedd” a’r cynllun drafft. Dylid nodi bod ein hymateb yn seiliedig ar gynllun drafft 

mwy manwl a rannwyd gydag aelodau Byrddau Gwasanaethau Busnes yn dilyn y cyfarfod 

Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Busnes ym mis Medi 2022, yn ogystal â’r cynllun drafft ar wefan yr 

ymgynghoriad. 

Ar y cyfan, rydym ni’n hyderus bod y cynllun yn adlewyrchiad cywir o’r asesiad llesiant a’r 

trafodaethau a gynhaliwyd yn ystod y cyfarfodydd Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Busnes. Rydym 

ni hefyd yn falch o weld ei fod yn rhoi amser a chyfle i’r Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Busnes a’r 

is-grwpiau perthnasol weithio gyda phartneriaid hen a newydd i ddatblygu manylion critigol 

pellach yn ymwneud â blaenoriaethau ac amcanion penodol dros y 12 mis nesaf. Hoffem 

hefyd sôn am y perthnasau gweithio ardderchog ar lefel swyddogion ac aelodau. 

Rydym ni’n cefnogi prif amcan y cynllun yn llawn ac yn nodi ei fod yn cynnig cyfleoedd clir i 

CNC gydweddu cyfran dda o’i flaenoriaethau a’i weithgareddau darparu, ac edrychwn 

ymlaen at weithio gyda’n gilydd i edrych ar ddulliau cydweithredol o weithio a sicrhau’r 

ymgysylltiad cymunedol gorau posibl. 

Hoffem hefyd bwysleisio pwysigrwydd y dull arwain a gytunwyd ac a gefnogwyd gan y 

Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Busnes, a buasem yn hoffi hwn gael ei bwysleisio yn fuan yn y 

cynllun er mwyn cefnogi’r prif amcan mewn perthynas â’r ffyrdd o weithio. 

Mae’n galonogol gweld cydnabyddiaeth o’r egwyddorion cynaliadwyedd a’r argyfwng 

hinsawdd yn amlwg ym mhopeth y mae’r Byrddau Gwasanaethau Busnes yn bwriadu ei 

wneud a bod y cynllun yn cydnabod yr heriau y mae’r rhain yn eu hachosi i’n cymunedau. 

Byddem hefyd yn awyddus i weld yr un statws yn cael ei roi i’r argyfwng natur ac i ddod ag 

arbenigedd ynghyd i helpu i lywio gwaith y Byrddau Gwasanaethau Busnes. 

Rydym yn amgau atodiad gyda sylwadau ar 4 thema’r cynllun llesiant drafft o dan y llythyr 
hwn. Er mwyn darparu cymorth wedi’i dargedu a’i gydlynu i’r holl Fyrddau Gwasanaethau 
Busnes, mae adborth CNC yn defnyddio’r categorïau canlynol:  
 

(i) Eitemau sy'n arbennig neu'n arwyddocaol ac yn benodol i leoliad  

(ii) Asesu a dadansoddi llesiant amgylcheddol  

(iii) Tueddiadau'r dyfodol  

(iv) Cymhwyso’r Asesiad o Risgiau Newid Hinsawdd i Gymru (CCRA3) 

(v) Anghydraddoldebau rhwng cymunedau a datguddiad i risgiau amgylcheddol  

Page 73



 

 

Mae’r categorïau hyn yn deillio o Rhannu Pwrpas: Rhannu Dyfodol: Canllawiau Statudol ar 

gyfer Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015 (SPSF3) ar rôl gytûn Byrddau 

Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus. Mae CNC yn defnyddio’r categorïau hyn i asesu llesiant 

amgylcheddol a ddarperir yn Adroddiad o Gyflwr Adnoddau Naturiol 2020 fel sail ar gyfer 

adborth ar y broses o gynllunio llesiant. 

Mae’r dull hwn yn helpu i adrodd hanes datblygiad Cynllun Llesiant Byrddau 

Gwasanaethau Busnes er mwyn galluogi aelodau Bwrdd CNC i ddeall a chymeradwyo pob 

cynllun llesiant. Bydd Cynllun Llesiant Conwy a Sir Ddinbych yn mynd gerbron cyfarfod 

Bwrdd CNC ym mis Ionawr 2023, gyda dyddiad cau i’w gyflwyno i CNC erbyn dydd Llun 

12 Rhagfyr. 

Cysylltwch â Helen Millband helen.millband@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk am fwy o 

wybodaeth.  

 

Yn gywir, 

 

Martin Cox 

Pennaeth Gweithrediadau Gogledd Orllewin Cymru (Rhannu swydd gyda Sian Williams) 

pennaeth.gweithrediadau.gogledd.orllewin@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a'r Saesneg 

 

  

Page 74

https://llyw.cymru/sites/default/files/publications/2019-02/spsf-3-rol-gydweithredol-byrddau-gwasanaethau-cyhoeddus.pdf
https://llyw.cymru/sites/default/files/publications/2019-02/spsf-3-rol-gydweithredol-byrddau-gwasanaethau-cyhoeddus.pdf
https://naturalresources.wales/evidence-and-data/research-and-reports/state-of-natural-resources-report-sonarr-for-wales-2020/?lang=cy
mailto:pennaeth.gweithrediadau.gogledd.orllewin@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk


 

09 November 2022 

Dear Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board, 

RE: Draft well-being plan feedback from Natural Resource Wales 

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the Conwy and Denbighshire draft well-being 

plan and objective "Conwy and Denbighshire to be more equal place with less 

deprivation".  You should note that our response is informed by the more detailed draft 

plan shared with PSB members after the September 2022 PSB meeting, as well as the 

draft plan on the consultation website. 

Overall, we are confident that the plan accurately reflects the well-being assessment and 

the discussions held at PSB meetings.  We are also pleased to see that it allows the PSB, 

and relevant sub-groups, time and opportunity to work with new and old partners to 

develop further critical detail around specific priorities and objectives over the next 12 

months.  We would also like mention the excellent working relationships at both officer and 

member levels. 

We fully support the plan’s main objective and note that it offers clear opportunities for 

NRW to align a good proportion of its priorities and delivery, and we look forward to 

working together to explore collaborative ways of working and maximising community 

engagement. 

We would also like to stress the importance of the leadership approach agreed and 

championed by the PSB and wonder if we should see this upfront in the plan supporting 

the main objective in relation to ways of working. 

We are encouraged to see the recognition of the sustainability principles and the climate 

emergency at the fore of everything that the PSB intends to do and that the plan 

acknowledges the challenges that these present to our communities.   We would also be 

keen to see the same status applied to the nature emergency and to bring expertise 

together to help inform delivery for the PSB. 

We attach an appendix with comments on the draft well-being plan 4 key themes below 
this letter.  In order to provide targeted and coordinated support to all Public Services 
Boards (PSBs), NRW feedback uses the following categories:  

 
(i) Items which are special or significant and distinct to place; 
(ii) Assessment and analysis of environmental well-being; 
(iii) Future trends; 
(iv) Application of the Climate Change Risk Assessment for Wales (CCRA3); and 
(v) Inequalities between communities and exposure to environmental risk 
 

These categories are drawn from the Welsh Government’s Shared Purpose Shared 

Future: Statutory guidance on the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

(SPSF3), on the collective role of PSBs. NRW is using these categories for assessing 

Page 75

https://gov.wales/well-being-future-generations-public-services-boards-guidance
https://gov.wales/well-being-future-generations-public-services-boards-guidance
https://gov.wales/well-being-future-generations-public-services-boards-guidance


 

Environmental well-being provided in the State of Natural Resources Report 

(SoNaRR2020) to inform feedback on the well-being planning process.  

This approach helps tell the story of each PSB Well-being Plan development in order that 

our NRW Board members can understand and approve each well-being plan. The Conwy 

and Denbighshire Well-being Plan will go to the January 2023 meeting of the NRW Board, 

with a deadline for submission to NRW by Monday 12th December. 

Please contact Helen Millband helen.millband@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk for further 

information.  

Yours sincerely, 

 

Martin Cox 

Head of Operations North West Wales (Job Share with Sian Williams) 

pennaeth.gweithrediadau.gogledd.orllewin@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk 

Correspondence welcomed in Welsh and English

 

Page 76

https://naturalresources.wales/evidence-and-data/research-and-reports/state-of-natural-resources-report-sonarr-for-wales-2020/?lang=en
https://naturalresources.wales/evidence-and-data/research-and-reports/state-of-natural-resources-report-sonarr-for-wales-2020/?lang=en
mailto:pennaeth.gweithrediadau.gogledd.orllewin@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk


 

 

Annex:  NRW response to Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services 

Board draft well-being plan 

 

NRW looks forward to working with the PSB to develop priorities already identified in the 

North West and North East Wales Area Statements, which can contribute to themes in the 

draft plan. 

To provide targeted and coordinated support to all Public Services Boards (PSBs), NRW 
feedback uses the following categories:  

 
(vi) Items which are special or significant and distinct to place 
(vii) Assessment and analysis of environmental well-being 
(viii) Future trends 
(ix) Application of the Climate Change Risk Assessment for Wales (CCRA3) and 
(x) Inequalities between communities and exposure to environmental risk 

These categories are drawn from the Welsh Government’s Shared Purpose Shared Future: 

Statutory guidance on the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (SPSF3), on the 

collective role of PSBs. NRW is using these categories for assessing Environmental well-

being provided in the State of Natural Resources Report (SoNaRR2020) to inform feedback on 

the well-being planning process.  

1. Conwy and Denbighshire draft plan theme:  Well-being – communities 

are happier, healthier and more resilient of challenges such as climate 

change and rising cost of living 

 

• This theme recognises the important well-being benefits that the natural resources 
in Conwy and Denbighshire can provide and that steps are needed to further protect 
and enhance biodiversity.  
 

• It also recognises steps can be taken to support sustainable and green transport 
plans, decrease carbon emissions, and encourage equal access to green and blue 
space and support communities to mitigate and cope with impacts of climate 
change.   

 
NRW is keen to support the PSB to develop more detail around these steps during 
the first 12 months of the plan development, which will contribute towards the 
Sustainable Management of Natural Resources associated with good 
environmental well-being, as measured by the four aims of SMNR: 
 

1. Safeguard and enhance stocks of natural resources 
2. Improve the health of our ecosystems 
3. Reduce communities’ exposure to environmental risks 
4. Incentivise a regenerative local economy whereby the environmental 

impacts of production and consumption are reduced 
 

Examples of next steps to develop the theme: 

Page 77

https://naturalresources.wales/about-us/area-statements/north-west-wales-area-statement/?lang=en
https://naturalresources.wales/about-us/area-statements/north-east-wales-area-statement/?lang=en
https://gov.wales/well-being-future-generations-public-services-boards-guidance
https://gov.wales/well-being-future-generations-public-services-boards-guidance
https://naturalresources.wales/evidence-and-data/research-and-reports/state-of-natural-resources-report-sonarr-for-wales-2020/?lang=en


 

 

 

• The PSB undertakes a local climate change risk assessment by systematically 
reviewing the risks identified in the Climate Change Risk Assessment (CCRA3) 
Evidence Report: Summary for Wales. This assessment, which would consider 
socio-economic and environmental information, can support the PSB to identify 
spatial locations where adaption should be prioritised. [Climate Change Risk 
Assessment for Wales CCRA3 and Environmental well-being aim 3]  
 

• More community engagement around the climate and nature emergency to identify 
local priorities for resilience and action. 

 

• Encourage communities to decarbonise, take collective actions to improve energy 
efficiency and re-use materials. [Environmental well-being aim 1] 

 

• The short document “Addressing the Nature and Climate Emergencies – A 
Summary of steps to take for Public Services Boards” sent with this response is 
a useful resource. 
 

• Work with the PSB to identify mechanisms to inform and influence better use of 
local natural assets. This approach could connect the well-being needs of 
communities with initiatives which enhance and safeguard the naturalness of local 
spaces [Special or significant and distinct to place].  Also consider opportunities 
to increase extent and connect habitats and reduce local pressures (e.g. invasive 
non-native species, pollution, habitat loss) on these spaces. [Environmental well-
being aim 2] 

 
• Reducing fuel and food poverty are specifically mentioned as medium-term 

successes for this theme.  We also recognise there are opportunities to start 
identifying steps that will safeguard food and energy in the longer term and protect 
natural resources by taking a systems approach to enable transformative change. 
The same applies to transport systems. [Environmental well-being aim 4] 

 

2. Conwy and Denbighshire draft plan theme:  Economy – there is a 

flourishing economy, supported by a skilled workforce 

 

• This theme recognises steps can be taken to develop a green economy as part of 

stimulating economic growth, including links with Ambition North Wales and North 

Wales Growth Deal projects. 

The PSB should seek to take a more inclusive and innovative approach to 

measuring economic benefit and success, both locally and working in collaboration 

regionally.  By measuring our wealth in terms of all assets, including natural assets, 

‘inclusive wealth’ provides a clear and coherent measure that corresponds directly 

with the well-being of current and future generations. 

• The PSB has an opportunity to influence how the green economy and sustainable 

tourism can support the local economy, to protect and improve rather than impact 

Page 78

https://www.ukclimaterisk.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/CCRA-Evidence-Report-Wales-Summary-Final.pdf
https://www.ukclimaterisk.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/CCRA-Evidence-Report-Wales-Summary-Final.pdf


 

 

on the environment while bringing in new opportunities and increased skilled work 

to the area.  This could be identified as a success measure for this theme. 

[Environmental well-being aim 4] 

 

• This theme also recognises the importance of supporting socially responsible public 

procurement which can benefit the local supply chain. As well as benefits to the 

local supply chain, this procurement approach can benefit environmental well-being 

by starting to promote a circular economy. [Environmental well-being aim 4] 

3. Conwy and Denbighshire draft plan theme:  Equality – those with 

protected characteristics face fewer barriers 

 

• The plan recognises the impacts of Climate Change will increase inequalities within 

our communities and the PSB should ensure that there is opportunity to consider 

these inequalities while developing the well-being plan over the next 12 

months.  These include: 

• Ensure that the transition to a net zero Wales is carefully managed to be 
both equitable and fair. [Inequalities] 

 

The need to decarbonise our economy and communities will have impacts 
on industries, sectors of the workforce and socio-economic groups. PSBs 
have an important role in understanding the social, environmental, 
economic and cultural consequences of the transition and to consider, in an 
integrated way, how local well-being will be impacted by the transition 
required now and in the future. 

• Reducing communities’ exposure to environmental harm to those most 
vulnerable.  Ensuring that the most vulnerable communities who are 
exposed to multiple health inequalities are surrounded by an environment 
that makes managing and taking actions to improve health and well-being 
easier, for example reducing communities’ exposure to air pollution and 
flooding. [Inequalities] 

 

• This theme currently states the contribution of the well-being goals of A More Equal 
Wales; and A Wales of Cohesive Communities, and through widening the 
equality theme there is an opportunity to maximise the contribution to the other well-
being goals. 

 
• NRW would like to see the PSB increase engagement with communities to support 

their understanding of and contribution to resilience. 
 

• NRW is keen to work with others to increase equality of access and experience to 
the natural environment. 

Page 79



 

 

4. Conwy and Denbighshire draft plan theme:  Housing – there is 

improved access to good quality housing 

 

• There is an opportunity to not only have good quality housing but ensure that 
housing is low carbon and resilient to the impacts of climate change.  Such 
measures can reduce costs through reducing energy bills, be water efficient as well 
as supporting decarbonisation and future impacts of climate events.  [Inequalities; 
Environmental well-being aim 1] 

• The plan recognises access for green spaces is important, we would also emphasis 
the accessibility to blue spaces, including the coastal and marine environment, and 
the well-being benefits this would bring. 

• As well as accessibility to housing it is important to develop connectivity of those 
homes within the community and to services and to consider opportunities for 
sustainable transport. [Environmental well-being aim 4] 

• NRW would support an approach that would bring together new and old partners to 
review innovative approaches to housing provision and upgrading. 

• This theme currently states the contribution of the well-being goals of A More Equal 
Wales; and A Healthier Wales, and through widening the opportunities there is an 
opportunity to maximise the contribution to the other well-being goals. 

 

Future Trends – applicable to all themes 

• The plan clearly states the PSB will focus on areas where collaboratively member 
organisations can make a difference and have a long-term impact. 

 

• Futures thinking techniques should inform PSB ways of working throughout the five-
year planning cycle. 

 

• This approach should help the PSB take account of what we know about the future 
by balancing short- and long-term needs. Futures thinking can also help the PSB to 
begin to identify and address the root cause of the issues faced thereby focussing 
resource towards areas where there is a high risk of a problem occurring and taking 
preventative rather than reactive action. 

 

Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



Annexe 1 
Summary of Future Generations Report recommendations  
The statutory guidance for PSBs (SPSF3) states ‘In setting its local objectives a board must also take 
into account the latest Future Generations Report as prepared by the Commissioner which will 
provide an assessment of the improvements public bodies should make in order to set and meet well-
being objectives in accordance with the sustainable development principle.’ 
 
With this in mind, below is a list of recommendations taken from the Future Generations Report 
2020 aimed at public bodies and PSBs, against each of the well-being goals and topics explored in 
the report.  
 
This is a lengthy list to consider, but it’s shared with the intent on being a helpful resource and 
source of reference/reassurance for public bodies and PSBs as you develop your well-being 
objectives and steps.  

 
Chapter 2: Leadership and implementation of the Act (public bodies and PSBs) 
In setting well-being objectives, public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Undertake horizon scanning exercises to think, plan and resource for the long-term future 
with others in collaboration – public, private, voluntary sector and members of their 
community. Welsh Government should help by establishing a targeted resource to help 
public bodies build capacity in long-term thinking, planning and futures techniques. 

 Use the first part of the ‘double test’ to identify ‘what’ they should do to maximise 
contributions to the well-being goals. 

 Set a long-term vision. Consider what success looks like for that objective in five, ten, fifteen, 
twenty and twenty-five years; and identify appropriate milestones and measures – 
considering the national milestones set by Welsh Government. 

 Move towards better involving people throughout the decision-making process from 
defining a problem to delivery and evaluation, being open to real change as a result. Welsh 
Government should help by undertaking a review of the statutory guidance of the Well-
being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, to build in a specific mechanism for the public 
to be involved in the work of public bodies – learning from the Scottish Community 
Empowerment Act. 

 
In setting steps, public bodies and PSBs should focus in these areas:  

 Test everything they do according to the Act’s ‘double test’ of the 'what' and the 'how'. 

 Collaborate with others and involve people to find the problems they need to prevent, 
understanding whether they fall into primary, secondary or tertiary prevention; using 
evidence to identify the best possible preventative interventions that maximise contribution 
to their objectives. 

 Public Services Boards and public bodies should be seeking ways of more effectively 
collaborating and integrating their work with others such as town and community councils 
and national public bodies; and identifying opportunities with others such as registered 
social landlords, the private sector, trade union representatives and further and higher 
education in delivering their well-being objectives and steps. 

 Set out much clearer steps to meeting their well-being objectives – reflecting what 
contribution each department will be taking to these steps. 

 Clearly align financial planning and decisions across the seven corporate areas of change to 
the achievement of their well-being objectives. The vision provided by well-being objectives 
should provide a longer-term plan of funding and corporate plans/well-being statements 
should set out how spending plans will seek to finance their steps. 

Page 93



 Provide evidence in their well-being statements/plans/corporate plans and annual reports 
on how applying the Act to the corporate areas of change is informing the steps they are 
taking to maximise their contribution to the goals. 

 Ensure they move beyond paper-based exercises, increase staff understanding and provide 
constructive challenge to show how the Five Ways of Working have been applied, 
specifically how contribution goals and objectives can be maximised. 

 Build challenge from other departments, experts and stakeholders into their internal 

 decision-making processes.  

 Develop their corporate centre and processes in line with the requirements of the Act, but 

also encourage innovation and culture change. All public bodies should be using and 

demonstrating use of resources like the Future Generations Frameworks, designed to help 

public bodies consider their proposal or decisions in the context of the Act. 

 Adopt the definition of stages of prevention and preventive spend and allocate spending 

accordingly within financial planning and risk management. 

In supporting cultural change, all public bodies and boards should:  

 Starting with Welsh Government, adopt a model of well-being budgets. While our legislation 
requires us to look at the whole budget, a positive place to start this transition would be 
with ‘new money’. 

 Galvanize efforts and building a movement of change placing well-being and kindness at the 
centre of public policy. 

 Involve their workforce in meeting their well-being objectives; start with their own actions, 
their teams, departments and whole organisations; to meet the national wellbeing goals.  

 Put in place arrangements to ensure staff understand how and why the Act should be 
applied. 

 Support opportunities to collaborate, second staff to other organisations and make joint 
appointments. 

 Take action to diversify their workforce and put in place arrangements to draw on their lived 
experiences. (For more detail please see Chapter 2 recommendations to Welsh Government 
on the ‘Real Life Fast Track’). 

 Ensure scrutiny committees, boards, and Audit and Risk Committees have received training 
on the Act and are using the Future Generations Framework for Scrutiny (See resources.) 

 Ensure that they have mechanisms in place to involve children and young people in their 
decision making processes. 

 In the same way that public bodies seek to appoint people with expertise on finance, risk, 
governance and human resources; an appropriate number (at least one for every board) of 
public appointments should be made where specific expertise and detailed understanding of 
the needs of future generations is a specific requirement. 

 Be brave in calling out behaviour in partnership environment which does not embody the 
Five Ways of Working; and should be supported by Welsh Government, the Future 
Generations Commissioner for Wales and other appropriate agencies to address this. 

 
Chapter 2: Procurement  
In setting well-being objectives, public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Involve departments and organisations who are impacted by the procurement process when 
setting well-being objectives (e.g. commissioning, contract management, suppliers and 
waste management). This could lead to public bodies understanding the broader benefits 
and steps they can take to improve all aspects of well-being through procurement. 

 
In setting steps, public bodies and PSBs should focus in these areas:  

Page 94



 Evidence the contribution procurement is making to meeting well-being objectives. 

 Public Services Boards should proactively prioritise how they can collaborate and 
use their spend to maximise social value, contribute to their well-being objectives, 
and improve well-being on a local level. 

 
In testing and demonstrating how they are applying the Act, all public bodies and 
boards covered by the Well-being of Future Generations Act (including Welsh 
Government) should: 

 Approach all procurement decisions through the lens of the Act – by applying the 
Five Ways of Working, considering their well-being objectives and/or steps and how 
to maximise contribution to the seven well-being goals at the very beginning of the 
process even at pre-procurement stage. 

 Provide clear evidence for how their procurement activities are supporting the 
delivery of their well-being objectives. 

 Include specific contract clauses linked to well-being objectives/goals in every 
public sector contract and framework, using social value measures to capture 
impact. 

In supporting cultural change, all public bodies and boards covered by the Wellbeing 
of Future Generations Act (including Welsh Government) should: 

 Capture lessons learned based on the outcomes of current frameworks to ensure 
opportunities to embed the Act are maximised in future. 

 
In measuring their progress, all public bodies and boards covered by the Wellbeing 
of Future Generations Act (including Welsh Government) should: 

 Review their procurement approach and activities, to identify opportunities to 
maximise the social, economic, environmental and cultural impact of spending 
decisions. 

 
Chapter 3: Wales’ Well-being goals 
 
A Prosperous Wales 
In setting well-being objectives specifically in relation to this goal public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Demonstrate the connections between their well-being objectives and steps on prosperity, 
and other areas such as the natural environment, fair work, procurement, health and well-
being and skills in a meaningful way. 

 Clearly set out how they understand the definition of the goal: 'A Prosperous Wales'. 

 Align their action and reporting on this goal with their commitment under the 
socioeconomic duty, to ensure their well-being objectives are addressing socio-economic 
disadvantages. 

 Accelerate their action on reducing emissions, helping meet Wales’ target of a carbon 
neutral public sector by 2030. This means mapping the areas over which they have 
control and which have the biggest emissions - ensuring they have a plan in place to 
reduce them. Immediate areas of focus should include carbon reduction through 
procurement, ultra-low emissions vehicles (fleet), buildings, fossil fuel divestment, 
decarbonising heat, transport and tourism. (Also a recommendation in the section on 
Decarbonisation in Chapter 5). 

 
In setting steps, public bodies and PSBs should focus in these areas:   

 Implement fair work practices through employment and services. 

 Enable a low carbon society through reducing emissions and supporting community energy. 

Page 95



 Work with others to support the development of skills for the future. 

 Procure goods and services in ways that support long-term economic, social, environmental 
and cultural well-being. 

 Support the foundational economy through generating wealth and providing employment. 

 Use resources efficiently, recognising the limits of the global environment. 
 
In your day to day actions public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Taking steps to become 'Fair Work Wales' employers, showing how they are incorporating 
'fair work' through their well-being objectives and in practice, and spending money with 
organisations that fulfil the definition and characteristics of fair, decent work, and that 
promote inclusivity and equality. 

 Making the connections between supporting local economies and prosperity, and how this 
also connects to supporting fair and local procurement, skills, local materials, and resource 
efficiency. 

 Accelerating their action on reducing emissions, helping meet Wales’ target of a carbon 
neutral public sector by 2030. This means mapping the areas over which you have control 
and which have the biggest emissions - ensuring they have a plan in place to reduce 
them. 

 Adopting repair and re-use targets to incentivise circular economy over recycling. 

 Supporting and investing in skills and repair cafes, including allowing people to borrow 
household items and equipment. 

 Monitoring social and environmental clauses in contracts, for example, community benefits. 

 Ensuring that Wales’ regional growth and city deals demonstrate how their investments are 
reducing carbon emissions overall, not just in selected projects, and contributing towards 
the well-being objectives for their area. 

 To do all they can to support local initiatives on stewardship of land and renewable 
energy, to help Wales’ transition to a low carbon society and bring a wide range of benefits 
to local communities. 

 To explore and demonstrate how they are seeking to move to a system where products can 
be used again to create further value (the principles of the circular economy), and how this 
relates to other areas such as the development of skills, innovation, the natural 
environment, local materials and saving money. 

 Supporting local businesses and providers where possible. 

 Undertaking meaningful involvement with local businesses in the development of local 
economic plans. 

 Leading by example by becoming ‘Fair Work Wales’ employers, incorporating 'fair work' 
through their well-being objectives and in practice, and addressing inequalities, pay gaps 
and zero hours contracts. 

 
A Resilient Wales 
In setting well-being objectives specifically in relation to this goal public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Clearly demonstrate the connections between their well-being objectives and steps on the 
environment, and other areas such as adverse childhood experiences, health and 
community cohesion. 

 Clearly set out how they understand the definition of the goal 'A Resilient Wales'. 
 Align their actions and reporting on this goal with their commitment under section 6 duty of 

the Environment (Wales) Act (2016). 
 
In setting steps, public bodies and PSBs should focus in these areas:   

 Declare a nature and climate emergency and rapidly accelerate the scale and pace of 
change to help tackle these challenges. 

Page 96



 Seek to maintain and enhance the natural environment through managing land and 
sea appropriately to create healthy functioning biodiverse ecosystems and encourage 
others to do the same. 

 Invest in and value the important role biodiverse green and blue space plays in 
supporting people’s health and community well-being. 

 Develop your knowledge of nature and increase awareness of the importance of a 
biodiverse natural environment with healthy functioning ecosystems, and prepare 
people with skills fit for the future. 

 Seek to improve water and air quality, making the environment healthier for both 
wildlife and people. 

 Use natural resources sustainably - being adaptive to an evolving environment. 
 
In your day to day actions public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Deliver year on year increases in biodiverse green and blue infrastructure and tree canopy 
cover in their areas and land. 

 Use their land holdings to maximise its biodiversity value, for example, implementing 
ambitious biodiversity and green infrastructure action plans and becoming pesticide free. 

 Use sound evidence, such as Natural Resources Wales' Area Profiles, i-tree assessments and 
natural capital accounting, to inform their decision making and development of plans and 
policies, demonstrating how they are investing in nature in their area. 

 Demonstrate how planning and infrastructure decisions jointly benefit people and nature. 
 Demonstrate how they are understanding and implementing Wales’ Marine Plan and the 

marine Area Statement (this is only applicable to public bodies with marine management 
responsibilities). 

 Empower communities to manage land (including publicly owned) for projects that use 
nature based solutions to restore local biodiversity and the resilience of ecosystems. 

 Identify ways, including the use of technology, they can help connect people of all ages, 
abilities and backgrounds with nature. 

 Demonstrate how they are understanding and implementing Wales' Climate Adaptation Plan 
in their areas. 

 
A Healthier Wales 
In setting well-being objectives specifically in relation to this goal public bodies and PSBs should:  

  Recognise the wider determinants of health.  
 Look to collaborate beyond traditional partners to address the wider determinants of  

health.  
  
In setting steps, public bodies and PSBs should focus in these areas:   

  Consider their role in a national wellness system - applying the Welsh Government  
definition of prevention to their activities as a first step, and exploring the most significant  
opportunities to shift spend to activities that support primary and secondary prevention;  
particularly opportunities to work in partnership.  

 Support people to act with compassion in order to facilitate understanding of mental  
well-being.  

 Play their part in enabling an active nation; increasing the benefits of physical activity for  
everyone.  

 Prioritise placemaking and designing-in community health and well-being - enabling  
places to support the health and well-being of people and communities.  

 
In your day to day actions public bodies and PSBs should:  

  Use the definition of prevention to better understand the opportunities for a different  

Page 97



balance of investment.  
 Explore the most significant opportunities to shift spend to activities that support  

primary and secondary prevention.  
 Prioritise opportunities to work in partnership on primary and secondary preventative  

activities - particularly through Public Services Boards.  
 Prioritise discussions about shifting investment to prevention in management arrangements 

with Welsh Government.  
 Use existing annual reporting to report on how the prevention definition is being used,  

and the different decisions that are being made as a result.  
 Integrate health and wellness into other well-being objectives; and identify the impact of 

health and wellness activities on other well-being objectives.  
 
A more equal Wales 
In setting well-being objectives, public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Ensure that objectives consider opportunities to tackle poverty and inequalities in the 
context of all of the well-being goals - not solely focusing on economic and social 
opportunities. 

 Consider more collaborative and integrated approaches to tackling poverty and equalities 
across services, focusing on groups that face particular disadvantages. 

 
In setting steps, public bodies and PSBs should focus in these areas:  

 Tackle poverty and socio-economic disadvantages. 
 Ensure equal access to decent jobs - recognising everyone's value. 
 Give people equal opportunities to participate in decision-making to enable equal outcomes. 
 Enable people to develop the skills and knowledge to be fulfilled  
 Understand the causes and effects of health inequalities. 

 
In your day to day actions public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Focus on prevention of inequalities, including through education and harnessing the 
skills and resilience of people who have lived experience of relevant issues. 

 Adopt proactive measures in setting well-being objectives and steps which include 
setting challenging targets for recruitment, retention and progression of women, black, 
Asian and minority ethnic groups and disabled people; ensuring that they are visible and 
represented at all levels in their organisation. 

 Adopt the actions of the Diversity and inclusion strategy for public appointments, aimed at 
providing equal opportunity for all, such as providing mandatory equality training and 
unconscious bias training. 

 Actively encouraging leaders and senior managers to have an equity mindset which 
permeates through their teams. 

 Align the setting, delivering and reporting of their well-being objectives on equality, with 
their strategic equality objectives. 

 
A Wales of Cohesive Communities 
In setting well-being objectives, public bodies and PSBs should:  
 

 Clearly demonstrate the connections between their well-being objectives and steps on 
community cohesion, and other areas such as tackling inequality and poverty, the natural 
environment, fair work, skills, health and well-being. 

 Clearly set out how you understand the definition of the goal: 'A Wales of Cohesive 
Communities'. 

Page 98



 Align their action and reporting on this goal with your commitment under the 
socioeconomic duty, to ensure their well-being objectives are addressing socio-economic 
disadvantages. 

 
In setting steps, public bodies and PSBs should focus in these areas:   

 Enable people to be active in their communities by creating the conditions where they can 
do the things that matter to them.  

 Support communities to be well connected and a place where people feel safe.  
 Enable good access to key well-being services.   
 Value the role and potential of community anchor organisations can play in building 

cohesive communities.   
 
With regard to potential actions, public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Embed a culture of meaningful citizen and stakeholder involvement; as well as making more 
explicit links with the voluntary sector and town and community councils - both as a voice 
and delivery partner.    

 Apply the steps and actions set out in our 'Journey to Involvement'.   
 Build on your focus on communities, demonstrate collaboration, innovation, transparency 

and local ownership, particularly in light of the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Bill, 
intended to reform and strengthen local government.  

 Support and work with community leaders, activists, entrepreneurs and volunteers in the 
delivery of well-being objectives.  

 Recognise that community stewardship of land offers a significant opportunity to deliver on 
the promise of green growth – to enhance social, environmental, and economic well-being.   

 Build on work to help tackle loneliness and isolation and mainstream approaches like these 
within service delivery. This requires taking a longer-term, preventative approach.  

 Use the relationships you have developed to work better together to plan, prepare and shift 
activity and resources towards prevention; to help tackle crime and anti-social behaviour.  

 Continue to build on the work you’re doing and ensure you involve a wide range of people, 
organisations and service users in their communities to help inform and shape your 
services.  

 Connect the Community Hubs programme to the delivery of plans and well-being objectives 
in your areas.  

 Work with key partners to prioritise placemaking and designing-in community health and 
well-being - enabling places to support the health and well-being of people and 
communities.  

 Set standards to ensure people can access green space within 300 metres of their home.   
 Support the long-term development of the Community Facilities Programme in a way which 

supports your own local well-being objectives and national well-being goals.  
 
A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language 
In setting well-being objectives, public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Ensure that the dimension of cultural well-being is integrated with other objectives in 
particular to address health and inequalities. 

 Go beyond statutory requirements when setting objectives relating to culture and Welsh 
language. 

 Clearly set out how they understand the definition of the goal: 'A Wales of Vibrant 
Culture and Thriving Welsh Language’. 

 Involve arts, language and culture practitioners and organisations in setting their objectives 
and steps. 

 

Page 99



In setting steps, public bodies and PSBs should focus in these areas:   

 Develop skills, increase opportunities and respect our status as a bilingual nation. 

 Support people to engage with culture in their daily working and recreational lives, and 
bring out the best in our cultural professionals. 

 Use cultural and linguistic interventions to address wider societal issues. 

 Use culture and the Welsh language as a driver for economic and environmental change. 

 Enable our citizens to access and engage with their own and other cultures. 
 
With regard to potential actions, public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Strengthen the dialogue between culture, science, technology and creative industry 
experts and practitioners with policy makers. 

 Involve arts and culture representatives in Public Services Boards work and activities. 

 Make the most of local assets such as libraries, play facilities, museums, galleries, sports 
facilities, music venues, arts organisations, natural resources and historical spaces to 
support community well-being. 

 Make the most of community organisations and youth groups to bridge the gap and 
bring culture to the spaces where people are; especially for communities such as BAME 
and rural, who could feel traditional ‘high culture’ venues are inaccessible for different 
reasons. 

 Work with cultural professionals to design and build communities and places. 

 Build the business development in towns and cities around cultural offer. 

 Engage in innovative partnerships that allow for culture to be more visible in daily life, 
for example linking the culture and health agendas. 

 Mainstream Welsh language considerations into all decisions made by public bodies. 

 Promote and support Wales’ rich diversity of cultures and languages, including 
working with our vibrant diaspora communities. 

 Address current lack of access to cultural, sports and recreational activities for BAME 
people. 

 
A Globally Responsible Wales 
In setting well-being objectives, public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Clearly demonstrate the connections between their well-being objectives and steps on being 
globally responsible; and other areas such as the natural environment, inequality, 
community cohesion, procurement, decarbonisation, resource efficiency, organisational 
development and skills. 

 Clearly set out how you understand the definition of the goal of a Globally Responsible 
Wales. 

 
In setting steps, public bodies and PSBs should focus in these areas:  

 Demonstrating global citizenship and leadership by supporting sustainable behaviour and 
making the connections. 

 Playing their part to ensure Wales is welcoming, safe and fair to all. 
 Committing to fair and ethical investment and divestment - making the right financial 

decisions now to enable future generations to thrive. 
 Ensuring supply chains are fair, ethical and sustainable. 
 Ensuring that they understand the importance of using the earth’s resources efficiently in 

order to contribute to global well-being. 
 
In your day to day actions public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Explore ways their staff can develop the knowledge and skills to understand complex global 
issues; and identify the impact of individual and collective actions, policies and plans. This 

Page 100



will help ensure decisions taken have a positive impact on the world beyond Wales, or as a 
minimum, avoid harm. 

 Be more explicit in demonstrating how initiatives, programmes and decision making are 
making a positive contribution to global well-being. 

 Take more of a concerted effort to successfully integrate refugees and asylum seekers in 
Wales. 

 Take steps to ensure they are tackling modern slavery as part of their corporate 
safeguarding policies; and sign up to deliver Welsh Government’s ‘Code of Practice: Ethical 
Employment in Supply Chains’. This includes commitments to treat people fairly when 
procuring goods and services as well as guidance and training to help achieve them. 

 Explore and demonstrating how they are seeking to move to a system where products can 
be used again to create further value (the principles of the circular economy); and how this, 
for example, relates to the development of skills, innovation, local materials and saving 
money. 

 

Chapter 5: topics 

Planning and placemaking  
In setting well-being objectives, public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Ensure well-being objectives relating to ‘planning’ are based on ‘placemaking’ and 
integrated with other objectives so that wider benefits are achieved. 

 Understand the connections between housing, the environment, technology, transport, 
access to services, culture and language now and for generations to come in order to help 
them achieve multiple objectives and steps. 

 Find new ways of measuring the success of planning decisions against their well-being 
objectives and adopt broader measures to help in turn broaden out their objectives and 
enable wider well-being. For example, designing measures of success around well-being - 
rather than counting planning applications or looking at how long it takes to approve 
them – would help people take more rounded decisions about places. The Royal Town 
Planning Institute have recently commissioned research for the UK and Ireland, with 
support from Welsh Government, on measuring planning outcomes. Public bodies and in 
particular Welsh Government will need to consider the findings. 

 
In setting steps, public bodies and PSBs should focus in these areas:  

 Put in place arrangements to ensure that placemaking is considered in all strategic decision-
making forums. 

 Ensure resources and training are provided by planning authorities to improve involvement 
in the design of their local plans. 

 Ask for more from developers and better involve communities to ensure projects; subject 
to planning permission; maximise contribution to the well-being goals and objectives. 

 
In your day to day actions public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Take every step to integrate work between agencies impacting placemaking and our 
built environment. 

 Align Local Development Plans and well-being plans/well-being objectives. 

 Train everyone involved in planning on the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015 and Planning Policy Wales 10. 

 Refuse developments which are not fully aligned with Planning Policy Wales 10 and the 
Well-being of the Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 i.e. which do not contribute 
towards the delivery of sustainable development and do not improve the social, 
economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales. 

Page 101



 Make use of the advice and review service of the Design Commission and of the Welsh 
Health Impact Assessment Unit for major development and design and revisions of Local 
Development Plans. 

 Use the Value of Planning Tool to identify ways to build a case for increasing investment 
in planning. 

 Align planning decisions with Welsh language policy and promotion standards. 

 Change mindsets from consultation to involvement and make every effort to involve 
people in plan design. 

 Synchronise and align all their infrastructure plans. 

 Consider starting to adopt Strategic Development Plans or Joint Local Development 
Plans where there are complex cross border movements. 

 Produce plain language explanation of their Local Development Plans and their planning 
documents and guidance. 

 Embrace the new presumption in Planning Policy Wales 10 paragraph 1.17 in favour of 
sustainable development in accordance with the development plan to ensure that social, 
economic, cultural and environmental issues are balanced and integrated. 

 Use the outcome model provided in annex B of Planning Policy Wales 10. 
 
Transport 
In setting well-being objectives, public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Collaborate and involve a wider set of people to review and design well-being objectives 
such as bus and public transport users; walkers and cyclists; schools; local business; 
community groups and others. This could lead to public bodies understanding the 
broader benefits and steps they can take to improve all aspects of well-being through 
transport. 

 Set well-being objectives on transport which are shaped towards meeting all the wellbeing 
goals, especially a goal of A Healthier Wales, A More Equal Wales and A Wales of 
Cohesive Communities. 

 Clearly show how they are integrating their objectives on transport with their other 
objectives. 

 Move beyond setting well-being objectives and steps that respond to the transport 
problems of today; and instead, use long-term horizon scanning to mould the way we 
may need to move in future. 

 Set out clearly how their objectives on transport and mobility align with carbon reduction 
targets. 

 Seek to change behaviour around mobility and consider connectivity in its widest sense, 
rather than simply improving infrastructure. 

 
In setting steps, public bodies and PSBs should focus in these areas:  

 Move away from traditional transport planning (such as road infrastructure) and onto a 
combination of alternative solutions that support the reduction of carbon emissions. 

 Commit as a public body and/or Public Services Boards to implement a Healthy Travel 
Charter in their area to encourage staff to use sustainable transport modes when 
travelling to work and within work. They should also encourage other local public bodies 
(not in the Public Services Board) and private businesses to sign too. 

 Focus more on cultural and behavioural change by continuously promoting sustainable 
modes of transport and adopting strategies to discourage and restrict car use. 

 Involve people to understand the reasons why they need to be connected to certain 
amenities and what would incentivise walking, cycling and using public transport. 

 Seek to drive a modal shift and low carbon transport emissions in their own organisations 
as well as seeking to change public behaviour 

Page 102



 
In your day to day actions public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Making transport decisions informed by the views of people and the community as a first 
step. They should engage with representatives of all groups being affected by these 
decisions, including young people, BAME communities, older people and people with 
disabilities. 

 Prioritising provision of high-quality cycle facilities, encourage active travel and support 
people to take public transport. 

 Prioritising the development of active travel infrastructure from the onset of all new 
developments. 

 Ensuring that your transport decisions are fully integrated with housing and land-use 
planning to minimise the need to travel. 

 Using WelTAG 17 as soon as in issue relating to transport is identified, as opposed to 
retrofitting once a decision on a solution has been made. 

 Collaborating with businesses to explore opportunities for creating viable bus services 
which can operate for other purposes, especially in rural areas. Scotland, Switzerland and 
Ireland operate schemes where the bus service doubles up for postal delivery and 
carrying passengers. 

 
 
Housing 
In setting well-being objectives, public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Ensure they reflect future trends especially demographic changes and the climate and 
nature emergencies 

 Clearly demonstrate the connections between their well-being objectives and steps on 
housing, and other areas, such as tackling inequality and poverty, the natural environment, 
fair work, skills, health and well-being. 

 Consider the recommendations of the Affordable Housing Review, the Independent Review 
on Decarbonising Welsh Homes and the report from the Homelessness Action Group. 

 
In setting steps, public bodies and PSBs should focus in these areas:  

 Set out how their steps to meet their objectives on housing can align with their objectives on 
skills, particularly in relation to the construction industry, and development of skills in 
modern methods of construction, including low carbon build. 

 
In your day to day actions public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Embedding values of kindness compassion in their work on housing and ensure these values 
are embraced by their workforce. 

 Ensuring local housing market assessments specifically include well-being assessments 
conducted by Public Services Boards as part of the data they use. 

 Working with housing associations to share and implement innovative practice. 

 Considering how they can require zero waste construction through their procurement 
processes. 

 Putting in place a clear plan for addressing climate change displacement (see the 
recommendation from the Resilient Wales section of Chapter 3). 

 Involving the housing sector in the work of the Public Services Boards, including inviting 
them to join the board. 

 Considering housing as one of the wider determinants of health. 

 Ensuring Local Development Plans and social housing developments meet the needs of 
the ageing population. 

 

Page 103



Decarbonisation 
In setting well-being objectives, public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Ensure that all well-being objectives, including those relating to jobs, skills and health, seek 
opportunities to contribute to reducing emissions and consider the impacts of climate 
change. 

 In setting well-being objectives public bodies should ensure they have a significant focus on 
decarbonisation. They should also ensure that decarbonisation is a key consideration in all 
objectives that have been set, and in taking steps to meet all well-being objectives. 

 Accelerate their action on reducing emissions, helping meet Wales’ target of a carbon-
neutral public sector by 2030. This means mapping the areas over which you have control, 
and which have the biggest emissions, and having a plan in place to reduce them. Immediate 
areas of focus should include carbon reduction through procurement, ultra-low emissions 
vehicles (fleet), buildings, fossil fuel divestment, decarbonising heat, transport and tourism. 
(Also a recommendation in the section on a Prosperous Wales in Chapter 3). 

 
In setting steps, public bodies and PSBs should focus in these areas:  

 Work with Welsh Government to develop a mechanism for assessing the carbon impact of 
budget decisions and allocations. 

 Build on progress in relation to reducing emissions from energy use and buildings, and 
increase the focus of their decarbonisation efforts on transport, housing, land use and 
procurement in line with the ambition of achieving a carbon neutral public sector by 2030. 
(See specific recommendations in other chapters) 

 Require all publically funded building to be carbon-neutral. 

 Have an understanding of their current emissions in order to plan how these can be 
reduced. 

 
In your day to day actions public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Thoroughly understand their current emissions in order to plan how these can be reduced. 

 Resourcing and prioritising carbon and eco-literacy training for all elected members and 
senior officers to ensure they have the necessary skills and understanding to make the right 
decisions for the climate. 

 Ensuring support and sufficient capacity to achieve a carbon neutral public sector by 2030. 

 Reducing their need for energy and using energy more efficiently. 

 Encouraging the development of local renewable energy schemes. 

 Reducing their need for resources and use resource more efficiently. 

 Reducing consumption and encourage a circular economy. 

 Prioritising local sustainable and active travel schemes. 

 Building zero carbon buildings and homes, and retrofitting existing buildings and homes. 

 Acting on the health impacts relating to climate change, particularly the disproportionate 
impact on the most vulnerable. 

 Ensuring that all decisions, including pension fund investments, are compatible with the 
climate emergency. 

 Promoting and incentivising individual solutions to support behaviour change, that people 
can adopt at home and/or work to deliver a wider cultural shift in communities across 
Wales. 

 Considering and taking action to address the climate and nature crisis together. 

 Restoring forests and peatland and more sustainable land-use to protect nature. 
 
Skills 
In setting well-being objectives, public bodies and PSBs should:  

Page 104



 Collaborate and involve a wider set of people to review and design well-being objectives, 
such as: schools (pupils, governors, headteachers); Further and Higher Education 
institutions; local business; community groups; Regional Skills Partnerships and others.   

 Set well-being objectives on skills which are shaped towards meeting all the wellbeing goals 
rather than just focusing on ‘A Prosperous Wales.’   

 Clearly show how they are integrating their objectives on skills with their other objectives.   
 Move beyond setting well-being objectives and steps that respond to the economic 

opportunities and industries of today and, instead, use long-term horizon scanning to mould 
our future economy - not just ensure current businesses have the workforce they need now 
and in the short-term.   

 Undertake their own workforce audits and skills gap analyses, looking through the lens of 
the seven well-being goals, including Welsh language skills needs, to identify any gaps to be 
filled.  

 
In setting steps, public bodies and PSBs should focus in these areas:  

 Recognise the different skill sets that we will need to meet our targets to reduce carbon 
emissions and exploit opportunities in a ‘green’ and circular economy; with renewable 
energy, less waste and more responsible businesses.   

 More widely adopt intergenerational programmes to help us to adapt to demographic 
changes.   

 Seek to reduce inequalities by involving people in the ‘story behind the data’ and 
collaborating with others.  

 Develop skills, promote our culture, heritage and status as a bilingual nation – particularly as 
creativity will be one of the most attractive skills for the future.  

 
In your day to day actions public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Re-assess the measures of progress and outcomes for skills.   
 Promote culture and Welsh language through apprenticeships and work-based learning, and 

ensure that it is built in at the start of any technological development.   
 Put in place mechanisms to support and encourage lifelong learning, workforce learning, 

apprenticeships, and work experiences.   
 Adopt proactive measures in setting well-being objectives and steps, which include setting 

challenging targets for recruitment, retention, and progression of women, Black, Asian and 
minority ethnic groups, and disabled people; ensure that they are visible and represented at 
all levels in their organisation.   

 Adopt the actions of the 'Diversity and Inclusion Strategy for Public Appointments', aimed at 
providing equal opportunity for all, such as providing mandatory equality training and 
unconscious bias training.   

 Communicate how The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 links to the 
delivery of the new curriculum, to ensure that education helps Wales meet its well-being 
goals; including the role schools, colleges and universities could play in meeting local 
wellbeing objectives.   

 Collaborate with other public, private and voluntary sector organisations to support teaching 
and learning, provide work experience opportunities and apprenticeships.   

 Create job ladders in areas where there has been no opportunity for progression.   
 Consider introducing job switching to help people progress and gain new skills.   
 Put in place recruitment and workforce planning processes identifying and rewarding skills 

identified for the future.   
 

ACEs 
In setting well-being objectives specifically in relation to this goal public bodies and PSBs should:  

Page 105



 Collaborate with wider stakeholders including community anchor organisations and the ACE 
Support Hub. 

 Set well-being objectives on Adverse Childhood Experiences that seize opportunities to work 
with partners beyond traditional services and to consider how they are doing this you can 
meet other well-being objectives and goals. 

 Be willing to fundamentally reform existing services. 
 
In setting steps, public bodies and PSBs should focus in these areas:   

 Identify evidence based practice from across Wales and beyond and adopt locally. 
 Standardise training for Adverse Childhood Experiences and it should be quality assured 

across all public bodies by formal evaluation; and embedded in organisations so looking 
through an ‘ACE lens’ becomes the cultural norm. An accreditation, or approved list in Wales 
should be explored by the ACE Support Hub. 

 Look at the whole system and replace competition with compassion – interventions should 
be dealing with the person, not the specific issue. 

 
In your day to day actions public bodies and PSBs should:  

 Pooling resources and budgets for the common purpose of tackling Adverse Childhood 
Experiences. 

 Placing an ‘ACE lens’ over all well-being objectives. 
 Breaking down barriers between professions, public bodies and communities to allow 

collaboration and integration.  
 To use implementation science for new initiatives and commit to scale up when they 
 work. 
 Ensuring relevant information about vulnerable children and families is shared promptly 

with schools as well as other statutory agencies – adopting Operation Encompass across the 
board. 

 
 

Page 106



Addressing the Nature and Climate 
Emergencies: A Summary of Steps to take for 

Public Services Boards 
1 Understand the key systems driving unsustainable practices 
The environmental systems, food systems and resource systems that influence environmental well-being often 

behave in ways that are complex and unpredictable. In areas like land management, waste management, 

biodiversity conservation, pollution prevention, food security and decarbonisation, the cause and effect of arising 

issues are complex or unattainable. The term “wicked issues” is sometimes used to describe problems like climate 

change and biodiversity loss.  In these kinds of situations, interventions need to be designed in the absence of 

perfect knowledge of how human and natural processes interact, and in a way that draws together fragmented 

evidence and multiple perspectives. Systems approaches can provide structure in such cases. 

 The overwhelming message from SoNaRR2020  is that societal transformation is needed in the Food, Energy 

and Transport systems. Taking a system view will allow a wider range of leverage points than have 

traditionally been used to regulate the environment and it is recommended that PSBs explore the 

opportunity to influence these systems collectively and to build transformative capacity and capability 

amongst and between partnerships. 

 Consideration of the three systems which require transformation will lead to the production of bespoke and 

place based collaborative opportunities for PSBs to consider. It is important that each place is supported to 

identify interventions in this more integrated way in order to consider how different national policies may 

interact with specific local socio-economic conditions and wider well-being locally. 

2 Ensure a Just Transition 
There is a need to ensure that the transition to a net zero Wales is carefully managed to be both equitable and fair. 

The need to decarbonise our economy and communities will have impacts on industries, sectors of the workforce 

and socio-economic groups in different ways, depending on the pathways, policies, and actions we choose.  

 The Public Services Board is well placed to consider the place-based impacts and opportunities of the 

transition required and the options to address them in its communities. NRW is advocating that PSBs have 

an important role in understanding the social, environmental, economic and cultural consequences of the 

transition and to consider, in an integrated way, how local well-being will be impacted by the transition 

required now and in the future. 

3 Influence change in the measures of economic success 
Whilst current environmental and conservation and management actions are having positive impacts on 

environmental well-being, their effects are overwhelmed by the growing socio – economic pressures on biodiversity.  

 NRW are advocating that the PSB make clearer connections to their respective growth and local and regional 

economic frameworks across a range of areas such as energy, the economy and skills and work with these 

partnerships to take a more ‘inclusive’ approach to measuring economic success. By measuring our wealth in 

terms of all assets, including natural assets, ‘inclusive wealth’ provides a clear and coherent measure that 

corresponds directly with the well-being of current and future generations. 

4 Deliver collaborative interventions  
There are also a number of best practice collaborative interventions which the PSB may like to deliver 

collaboratively.  The following generic steps fall into that category: 

Page 107

https://naturalresources.wales/evidence-and-data/research-and-reports/state-of-natural-resources-report-sonarr-for-wales-2020/?lang=en
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=l59xNwzSBKw
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=l59xNwzSBKw
https://gov.wales/regional-economic-frameworks
https://gov.wales/regional-economic-frameworks


a) Safeguard and enhance stocks of natural resources  
by decarbonising assets, procurement processes and services across organisations and providing opportunities for 

communities to do the same; recognising biodiversity as an asset and maximising the role of public sector assets to 

sequester carbon and deliver biodiversity enhancements; taking collective actions which will improve resource 

efficiency and the re-use of materials. 

b) Improve the health of our ecosystems 
by increasing the extent of semi-natural habitats; enhancing connection within and between ecosystems by creating 

connectivity patches and habitat corridors; restoring and creating semi-natural habitats; reducing and better 

managing the pressures and demands on ecosystems and natural resources (INNS, Climate Change, Pollution, Over-

use, habitat loss). 

c) Reduce communities’ exposure to environmental risks  
by adapting to the impacts of climate change and addressing inequalities and exposure to environmental risk by: 

I. Undertaking a local climate change risks assessment: 

 Systematically review the risks identified in the Climate Change Risk Assessment (CCRA3) Evidence Report: 

Summary for Wales. 

 Identifying which risks are relevant to the local area; it is anticipated that virtually all will apply, to some 

extent. Review past weather events and how effectively we dealt with them. What went well? What did not 

go well? 

 Prioritising the identified risks and specific communities exposed to those risks (considering socio-economic 

risk factors as well as environmental) and using this information to pinpoint spatial hotspots where 

adaptation should be prioritised in the local area. 

II. Building adaptive capacity and capability amongst PSB partners: 

 Understanding the PSBs sphere of influence in this area and what is within its gift to change, considering 

how the PSB can add value? 

 Harnessing opportunities to influence systems change and transformation such as the PSBs’ influence on 

other strategic partnerships operating in the region (e.g. CJCs, RPBs)  

 Agreeing collectively which PSB partner should lead on each climate risk 

 Devising collectively a standard format for summarising local information in relation to each climate risk 

 Considering whether existing policy, practice and resource allocation will be enough to mitigate long term 

Climate Change impact. This activity should include a consideration of what existing activity needs to stop, 

change or be renewed 

 Developing a mechanism for engagement / involvement with communities most at risk  

 Identifying where and how public sector assets could be repurposed to increase resilience / mitigation 

 Developing locally-led adaptation actions and projects  

 Continuing to develop evidence and insights on interactions between climate risks and wider social, 

economic, and natural systems.  

 Monitoring progress and taking an adaptive management approach to continually improve performance 

d) Incentivise a regenerative local economy whereby the environmental impacts of production and 

consumption are reduced 

by promoting a circular economy and wider social transformations. Examples might include local procurement, 

repair cafes, local food systems, sourcing energy from waste and renewables, reducing packaging, payments for 

ecosystem services, incentivising integrated active travel networks. 

  

Page 108

https://www.ukclimaterisk.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/CCRA-Evidence-Report-Wales-Summary-Final.pdf
https://www.ukclimaterisk.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/CCRA-Evidence-Report-Wales-Summary-Final.pdf


 

Case studies, best practice. 
Understand the key systems driving unsustainable practices  
SoNaRR2020 

Integrating a systems approach into Defra - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)  

A WELSH FOOD SYSTEM FIT FOR FUTURE GENERATIONS  | WWF, The 20-minute neighbourhood - Town and Country 

Planning Association (tcpa.org.uk)). 

The 20-minute neighbourhood - Town and Country Planning Association (tcpa.org.uk) 

Bikeability | Cycle training for everyone delivering better and safer training 

Just Transition 
Achieving a just transition in Wales | WCPP 

What is climate justice? | Climate Just 

Influence change in the measures of success  
The Economics of Biodiversity The Dasgupta Review: Headline Messages (publishing.service.gov.uk) 
Meet the doughnut: the new economic model that could help end inequality | World Economic Forum (weforum.org) 
 

Deliver collaborative interventions  

Climate adaptation: 
https://www.ukcip.org.uk/wizard/current-climate-vulnerability/lclip/ 

https://www.ukcip.org.uk/wizard/future-climate-vulnerability/bacliat/ 

https://lanntair.com/creative-programme/outer-hebrides-climate-beacon/    

https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/climate_change_risks_for_london_-

_a_review_of_evidence_under_1.5degc_and_different_warming_scenarios.pdf 

New resource highlights health impacts of climate change - Public Health Wales (nhs.wales) 

 

 

 

Page 109

https://naturalresources.wales/evidence-and-data/research-and-reports/state-of-natural-resources-report-sonarr-for-wales-2020/?lang=en
https://www.wwf.org.uk/updates/welsh-food-system-fit-future-generations
https://tcpa.org.uk/collection/the-20-minute-neighbourhood/
https://tcpa.org.uk/collection/the-20-minute-neighbourhood/
https://tcpa.org.uk/collection/the-20-minute-neighbourhood/
https://www.bikeability.org.uk/
https://www.wcpp.org.uk/publication/achieving-a-just-transition-in-wales/
https://www.climatejust.org.uk/what-climate-justice
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/957629/Dasgupta_Review_-_Headline_Messages.pdf
https://www.weforum.org/agenda/2017/04/the-new-economic-model-that-could-end-inequality-doughnut/
https://www.ukcip.org.uk/wizard/current-climate-vulnerability/lclip/
https://www.ukcip.org.uk/wizard/future-climate-vulnerability/bacliat/
https://lanntair.com/creative-programme/outer-hebrides-climate-beacon/
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/climate_change_risks_for_london_-_a_review_of_evidence_under_1.5degc_and_different_warming_scenarios.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/climate_change_risks_for_london_-_a_review_of_evidence_under_1.5degc_and_different_warming_scenarios.pdf
https://phw.nhs.wales/news/new-resource-highlights-health-impacts-of-climate-change/
https://phw.nhs.wales/news/new-resource-highlights-health-impacts-of-climate-change/
https://phw.nhs.wales/news/new-resource-highlights-health-impacts-of-climate-change/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix 5 – Conwy & Denbighshire Well-Being Plan 2023-28: 

Overview of Consultation Responses 

The consultation was launched on the 17 August 2022 and closed on the 9 

November 2022.  It ran for 12 weeks in line with the statutory guidance for PSBs. 

It was circulated to the following statutory consultees, including: 

 PSB members 

 FG commissioner’s officer  

 Welsh Government 

 Key partners – Llandrillo, Snowdonia National Park, Arts Council of Wales, 

Sports Council for Wales, National Library of Wales, Community Health 

Councils, Higher Education Funding Council for Wales and Town and 

Community Councils 

 Conwy and Denbighshire PSB Joint Overview & Scrutiny committee 

 Public 

 Businesses 

 Trade unions 

The draft well-being plan was also circulated to others, including: 

 Community groups 

 North Wales PSB officers 

Consultation Methods 

1. Survey – online survey produced (paper copies made available on request) 

2. Email - to the stakeholders outlined above  

3. Social Media – schedule of messages to promote survey (shared with partners) 

4. Press Release 

Page 111



Consultation responses 

Overall responses to the consultation were unfortunately low.  In total we received: 

 10 responses from the online survey 

 Feedback from the Conwy & Denbighshire Joint Scrutiny Committee, Future 

Generations Commissioners Office, Welsh Government, Natural Resources 

Wales 

 Majority of the respondents agreed with our outcome of tackling deprivation 

and inequality, with further comments received including: 

 

Source Feedback 

Online Survey  Availability and protection of public spaces and 

footpaths. 

 Whilst signposting is useful ultimately there has to be 

enough of the right services available quickly to make a 

difference/impact. This needs to reflect that access 

needs to be prompt and that enough of the right 

services are available.   

 Plan is too vague, contains no quantifiable actions with 

proper metrics and ownership. 

Joint PSB scrutiny 

committee 

 The committee endorsed the priority, the key themes 

and the proposed actions to deliver the Well-being 

Plan, but requested that the following recommendation 

be consider by the PSB - ‘ensuring sufficient 

information and assistance was available to enable 

Conwy and Denbighshire residents to access justice 

and legal aid’ 

Natural Resources 

Wales 
Please see appendix 3 for more information. 

Future Generations 

Commissioner 
Please see appendix 4 for more information. 

 

Page 112



  

 

 

 

Report to  Conwy and Denbighshire Public Service Board  

Date of meeting  30th November 2022 

Lead Member / Officer  Jason McLellan, Denbighshire County Council Leader 

Report author  
Iolo McGregor, Denbighshire County Council, Strategic 

Planning and Performance Team Leader 

Title  PSB Risk Register Review, November 2022  

 

1. What is the report about?  
 

1.1. An annual update on the Conwy and Denbighshire PSB’s Risk Register.  

 

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

  
2.1. This report asks PSB to review the Conwy and Denbighshire PSB risk register 

and the risks PSB is facing.  

 

3. What are the Recommendations?  
 

3.1. PSB considers the risks, scores and mitigating actions included in full Risk 

Register (Appendix 1).  

3.2. PSB notes the amendments highlighted in paragraph 4.3 and discusses any 

further amendments or new risks that may be required.  

 

4. Report details  
 

4.1. The PSB Risk Register is developed and owned by PSB. It is formally 

reviewed once per year, as outlined in the Terms of Reference. 

4.2. The last review was undertaken in December 2020.   

4.3. During this latest review, there have been a small number of updates, in 

summary:  

 The inclusion of an additional column to identify future mitigating actions to 

encourage long-term thinking and prevention.  

 PSB 2: The risk that partner organisations are not committed to the board. 

Included three additional mitigating actions: 

Page 113

Agenda Item 5



i. PSB members have agreed to set up informal meetings to discuss 

upcoming agendas, build relationships and networking. 

ii. Joint Scrutiny Committee established to evaluate effectiveness of 

the PSB. 

iii. Representatives from the PSB’s invited participant list have been 

co-opted onto the Joint Scrutiny Committee to assist in evaluating 

the effectiveness of the PSB. 

 PSB 3: The risk that the PSB fails to maximise the potential impact it can 

achieve through a collaborative approach. Included three additional mitigating 

actions: 

i. Support from the co-production network to ensure we successfully 

collaborate. 

ii. Joint Scrutiny Committee established to evaluate effectiveness of the 

PSB. 

iii. Representatives from the PSB’s invited participant list have been co-

opted onto the Joint Scrutiny Committee to assist in evaluating the 

effectiveness of the PSB. 

 One new risk has been identified. PSB 6: The risk that recruitment and 

retention issues, leading to a loss of expertise and capacity, worsen resulting 

in poor or inadequate services.  

4.4. No risks have been removed.  

 

5. How does the decision contribute to the Priorities?  
 

5.1. The purpose of the PSB Risk Register is to identify the potential future events 

that may have a detrimental impact on the PSB’s ability to deliver its 

objectives, including its priorities. The identified controls and actions are 

therefore crucial to the delivery of the priorities.  

 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services?  
 

6.1. The cost of developing, monitoring and reviewing the PSB Risk Register is 

absorbed within existing budgets.  

 

7. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 

reduce them?  
 

7.1. There are no risks associated with this review.   Page 114



  

Conwy & Denbighshire Public Services Board  
Board Risk Register and Community Risk  

This document provides information on the core risks identified by the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board.  The risk register also captures 

broader social and global risks where PSB partner organisations, might be impacted if the risk were to materialise. 
  

Reference and 
Risk Description 

Potential Impact 

Inherent 
Risk 

Score 

Risk Mitigating Actions 

 
Future Mitigating Actions 

Residual Risk 
Score 

Milestone 
dates 

Action 

Owner 

PSB 1  
 
The risk that the 
PSB has 
insufficient 
funding, resources 
and capacity to 
deliver the 
priorities 
identified in the 
Well-being Plan.  

- Failure to deliver the 
Well-being plan.  

- Fail to improve the 
economic, social, 
environmental and 
cultural well-being of 
our population.  

- Not adhering to the 
Wellbeing of Future  
Generations Act, 
leading to possible 
consequences from 
the Commissioner.  
  

B3: 
Major 
risk -  

Likely / 
Medium 

- Small amount of PSB grant 
funding available to support 
delivery of the Wellbeing Plan. 

- Programme management in place 
to help allocate resource and plan 
for delivery.   

- Any capacity pressures should be 
raised with the chair of the PSB. 

- Long-term planning to 
ensure statutory 
deadlines are met 
- Future effective 
management of the PSB 
funding 
 

C3 
Moderate 

Risk – 
Possible / 
Medium 

  

PSB  

P
age 115



PSB 2 
 
The risk that 
partner 
organisations are 
not committed to 
the board.  

- Low attendance at 
meetings.  

- Lack of ownership of 
PSB plan and 
priorities.  

- PSB work is seen as a 
separate entity and 
not embedded into  
organisations’ 
‘business as usual.’ 

- Damages 
effectiveness, 
leading to 
reputational 
consequences.  
 

C2: 
Major 
risk – 

Possible 
/ High 

- Terms of Reference in place 
setting out the working 
arrangements for the Board, 
including purpose, structure and 
expected membership.   

- Board governed by the Wellbeing 
of Future Generations Act 2015   

- Robust evidence and 
consultation-based rationale for 
current priorities.   

- Keep agenda strategic.   
- Manage meetings effectively.   
- Regular feedback from board 

members.   
- Members are introducing 

‘informal meetings’ between PSB 
meetings to discuss upcoming 
agendas, build relationships and 
networking 

- Joint Scrutiny Committee 

established to evaluate 

effectiveness of the PSB. 

- Representatives from the PSB’s 

invited participant list have been 

co-opted onto the Joint Scrutiny 

Committee to assist in evaluating 

the effectiveness of the PSB. 

-Partner organisations are 
identified and involved as 
action owners for relevant 
objectives within the Well-
being plan to ensure equal 
participation 

C3: 
Moderate 

risk – 
Possible / 
Medium 

  

PSB  

PSB 3 
 
The risk that the 
PSB fails to 
maximise the 
potential impact it 
can achieve 

- Work undertaken in 
silos, leading to 
possible duplication 
and inefficiency.   

B2: 
Critical 
risk – 

Likely / 
High  

- Programme management in place 
to help allocate partner resources 
and plan for delivery.   

- Ensure there is a good 
understanding across the partners 
of what the board as a whole is 
seeking to achieve.   

-  Identify and understand 
interdependencies 
between priorities and 
work streams. 

C2: Major risk 
– Possible / 

High 

  

PSB  

P
age 116



through a 
collaborative 
approach.  

- Ensure board members, services 
and teams are committed to 
priorities having been involved in 
their design and prioritisation.   

- Support from the co-production 
network to ensure we successfully 
collaborate 

- Joint Scrutiny Committee 
established to evaluate 
effectiveness of the PSB. 

- Representatives from the PSB’s 
invited participant list have been 
co-opted onto the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee to assist in evaluating 
the effectiveness of the PSB. 

PSB 4 
 
The risk that the 
complex 
partnership 
landscape both 
regionally and sub-
regionally impacts 
on the delivery of 
the Well-being 
Plan.  

- Potential duplication 
with other 
collaborations.  

- Capacity and resource 
issues.  

B3: Major 
risk – 

Likely / 
Medium 

-  Programme management in place 
to help allocate partner resources 
and plan for delivery. 

-   Involvement of stakeholders in the 
design of solutions. 

-  Undertake research before and 
during the development of 
partnerships/collaboration to 
ensure key outcomes are relevant 
to all.   

- Establish a strong and 
relevant vision focused on 
the future, which is 
reviewed regularly.   

C3: Moderate 
risk – Possible 

/ Medium 

  

PSB  

P
age 117



PSB 5 
 
The risk that there 
are further Covid-
19 waves, which 
require PSB 
members to focus 
their attention on 
response.  

- Unable to fulfil the 
PSB well-being 
objectives.  

B2: 
Crtical 
risk – 

Likely / 
High  

-   Defer projects and advise the 
commissioner accordingly   

- Utilise established process 
and procedures from 
previous waves 
- Monitor the situation 
closely  

B3: Major 
risk – Likely 
/ Medium 

  

PSB  

PSB 6 
 
The risk that 
recruitment and 
retention issues, 
leading to a loss of 
expertise and 
capacity, worsen 
resulting in poor or 
inadequate 
services. 

- Capacity and 
resource issues. 
- Unable to fulfil the 
PSB well-being 
objectives. 
- Difficulty meeting 
statutory 
requirements. 
- Low attendance at 
meetings.  
- Lack of ownership of 
PSB plan and 
priorities.  

 

B2: 
Crtical 
risk – 

Likely / 
High 

-   Ensure all targets are specific, 
measurable, realistic and 
achievable 

- Work is taking place regionally to 
tackle particular/acute 
recruitment issues 

- Sufficient handovers when 
people are leaving 
- Delivery of our objectives 
within the Well-being Plan 
will help to mitigate this risk 
specifically those under the 
‘Economy’ theme 

C3: 
Moderate 

risk – 
Possible / 
Medium 

 

PSB 

 

P
age 118



 

Appendix 2: Risk Scoring Matrix 

Grading the likelihood of an event 

Grade % chance Description 

A: Almost Certain Over 70% Event is almost certain to occur in most 

circumstances 

B: Likely 30% to 70% Event likely to occur in most circumstances 

C: Possible 10% to 30% Event will possibly occur at some time 

D: Unlikely 1% to 10% Event unlikely and may occur at some time 

E: Rare Under 1% Event rare and may occur only in exceptional 

circumstances 

Rating the impact of an event 

Rating 

Time / cost / 

objectives 

Service 

performance Reputation 

Financial 

cost 

1: Very 

High 

More than 50% 

increase to project time 

or cost. Project fails to 

meet objectives or 

scope. 

Unable to 

deliver core 

activities. 

Strategic aims 

compromised. 

Trust severely 

damaged and full 

recovery 

questionable and 

costly. 

Over 

£5million 

Page 119



 
2 

Rating 

Time / cost / 

objectives 

Service 

performance Reputation 

Financial 

cost 

2: High 20% to 50% increase 

to project time or cost. 

Impact on project 

scope or objectives 

unacceptable to 

sponsor. 

Significant 

disruption to 

core activities. 

Key targets 

missed. 

Trust recoverable at 

considerable cost 

and management 

attention. 

£1million 

to 

£5million 

3: Medium 5% to 20% increase to 

project time or cost. 

Major impact on project 

scope or objectives 

requiring sponsor 

approval. 

Disruption to 

core activities / 

customers 

Trust recovery 

demands cost 

authorisation 

beyond existing 

budgets. 

£350,000 

to 

£1million 

4: Low Less than 5% increase 

to project time or cost. 

Minor impact on project 

scope or objectives. 

Some 

disruption to 

core activities / 

customers 

Trust recoverable at 

modest cost with 

resource allocation 

within budgets 

£50,000 to 

£350,000 

5: Very 

Low 

Insignificant increase to 

project time or cost. 

Barely noticeable 

impact on project 

scope or objectives. 

Minor errors or 

disruption. 

Trust recoverable 

with little effort or 

cost. 

Less than 

£50,000 

 

  

Page 120



 
3 

The combination of impact and likelihood results in a risk exposure rating of: 

Risk Score Risk Severity Escalation Criteria 

C5, D4, D5, E4, E5 Minor Risk easily managed locally – no need to involve 

management 

A5, B4, B5, C3, C4, 

D3, E2, E3 

Moderate Risk containable at service level – senior 

management and SLT may need to be kept 

informed 

A3, A4, B3, C2, D1, 

D2, E1 

Major Intervention by SLT with Cabinet involvement 

A1, A2, B1, B2, C1 Critical Significant SLT and Cabinet intervention 

 

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CONWY AND DENBIGHSHIRE PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD JOINT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
Minutes of a meeting of the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board Joint 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in Council Chamber, County Hall, Ruthin and by 
Video Conference on Friday, 21 October 2022 at 10.00 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor Kelly Clewett, Pauline Edwards, Paul Keddie and Elfed Williams, Denbighshire 
County Council. 
Councillor David Carr, Bernice McLoughlin, Angie O'Grady, Stephen Price, John Roberts, 
Conwy County Borough Council. 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

 
Hannah Edwards, Public Services Board Development Officer (CCBC) 
Karen Evans, Democratic Services Officer (DCC) 
Rhian Evans, Scrutiny Coordinator (DCC) 
Dawn Hughes, Scrutiny and Committee Services Officer, (CCBC)  
Amanda Jones, Corporate Performance and Improvement Officer (CCBC) 
Stephanie Jones, Committee Administrator (DCC) 
Iolo McGregor, Strategic Planning and Performance Team Leader (DCC) 
Shannon Richardson, Strategic Planning and Performance (DCC) 
 

 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Joan Butterfield, Cheryl 
Carlisle, Alan Hughes, Kay Redhead, Austin Roberts and Gareth Sandilands. 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No interests of a personal or prejudicial nature were declared. 

3 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR  
 
As per the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board Joint Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee’s (JOSC) Terms of Reference a nomination for Chair for the 
2022/23 municipal year was sought from amongst Denbighshire County Council’s 
representatives on the JOSC.  Councillor Gareth Sandilands was proposed and 
seconded.  No other nomination was received.  The JOSC therefore unanimously: 
 
Resolved: to appoint Councillor Gareth Sandilands as the Chair of the Conwy 
and Denbighshire Public Services Board Joint Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for the 2022/23 municipal year. 

4 APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR  
 

Page 123

Agenda Item 6



Furthermore, and in accordance with the JOSC’s Terms of Reference, a nomination 
for Vice-Chair for the 2022/23 municipal year was sought from amongst Conwy 
County Borough Council’s representatives on the JOSC.  Councillor Cheryl Carlisle 
was proposed and seconded.  No other nomination was received.  The JOSC 
therefore unanimously: 
 
Resolved: to appoint Councillor Cheryl Carlisle as the Vice-Chair of the 
Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board Joint Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for the 2022/23 municipal year. 
 
 
As both the newly elected Chair and Vice-Chair had tendered their apologies for the 
meting the JOSC was asked to nominate an elected member, from either local 
authority, to serve as Chair for the meeting.  Councillor John Roberts was 
nominated and seconded.  No other nomination was received therefore the JOSC 
unanimously: 
 
Resolved: to appoint Councillor John Roberts to chair the meeting in the 
absence of the Chair and Vice-Chair elect. 

5 URGENT MATTERS  
 
No matters of an urgent nature had been drawn to officers’ attention ahead of the 
meeting. 

6 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  
 
The minutes of the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board Joint Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 11 February 2022 were submitted for 
approval.  The JOSC: 
 
Resolved:  that the minutes of the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services 
Board Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 11 February 
2022 be approved as a true and correct record of the proceedings. 
 
No matters were raised in relation to the contents of the minutes. 

7 CONWY & DENBIGHSHIRE PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD'S ANNUAL REPORT 
2021/22  
 
The Corporate Performance and Improvement Officer (CCBC) introduced the 
Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board’s Annual Report 2021/22 
(previously circulated). The report provided an overview of what the Public Services 
Board (PSB) had achieved during the preceding financial year, reflecting 
compliance with the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 2015 Act in line with 
the 5 ways of working. It was the final annual report for the existing Conwy and 
Denbighshire Wellbeing Plan. 
 
 
 

Page 124



 
 
Achievements for 2021/2022 
 
Focus had been on supporting businesses and communities through the 
challenging times of the coronavirus pandemic, continuing to work collaboratively 
with PSB members to deliver public services. 
 
The main achievement for the previous year had been to review and update the 
local assessment of wellbeing for the region in preparation for the new Wellbeing-
Plan 2023/2028. Engagement with communities identified the key issues and 
priorities and how the Board could help influence and provide a leadership role to 
help address those issues. 
 
Priorities 
 

1. Mental Well-being 

Denbighshire Voluntary Services Council had arranged and delivered training on 
raising awareness around dementia to help communities and groups support 
people with dementia. 
 
2. Community Empowerment 
 
Digital connectivity had helped support communities to become more resilient 
during the pandemic, from accessing services online to increased learning and 
working from home.  
 
Various connectivity schemes had been discussed, including: 

 Connecting the Last Few % - a project under the North Wales Ambition 
Board targeting areas that did not have superfast broadband coverage. 

 LoRaWan Project – using technology to monitor various aspects of built 
and natural environment fluctuations, including river levels to aid early 
alert in event of a flood risk. 

 Fibre Community Partnerships – set up by Openreach to support the 
rollout of Broadband to communities not included on current rollout plans. 

The Board had taken an influencing and leadership role in those areas to 
improve digital connectivity. 

3. Environmental Resilience 

The Community Green Pledges scheme – pledges that community groups gave 
to reduce their negative environmental impact - had been relaunched in summer 
2021 which had led to a further 3 submissions. There was a commitment to 
encourage people to make the pledge to make a difference to climate change. 

A common organisational environment framework had been developed, 
establishing new groups - North Wales Decarbonisation and Climate Change 

Page 125



Officer Network. The Board was focussing on where they could add value rather 
than duplicate work in terms of: 

 Carbon and 

 Climate Risk Resilience. 

Funding had been made available by Welsh Government to Public Service Boards 
for community wealth building and a progressive procurement pilot project. A 
working group had been set up by CCBC and DCC to investigate how the supply 
chain could be decarbonised. The findings of the working group would be reported 
to the Public Services Board in due course. 

Following consideration of the report’s contents the JOSC: 
 
Resolved:  to - 
 

(i) receive the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board’s (PSB) 
Annual Report for 2021/22; and  

(ii) confirm that it was satisfied that the PSB had complied with the 
requirements of the Well-being and Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 in relation to reporting on its activities and the progress made in 
delivering its Well-Being Plan 2017-2022. 

8 CONWY & DENBIGHSHIRE PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD'S WELL-BEING PLAN 
2023 TO 2028  
 
The Strategic Planning and Performance Team Leader (DCC) introduced the 
proposed draft Well-being Plan for 2023 to 2028 (previously circulated). The cover 
report outlined the steps undertaken to develop the content of the Well-being Plan 
to date. It was highlighted that the draft report had been brought before the 
Committee as statutory consultees and sought feedback to inform the final report 
that would be submitted to the PSB on 30th November 2022. 
 
The plan focussed on the ambition of making Conwy and Denbighshire a more 
equal place to live with less deprivation. In doing so it sought to address the root 
causes of poverty and deprivation and encourage resilience under four key themes: 

1. Well-being – Communities are happier, healthier and more resilient in the 
face of challenges, such as climate change or the rising cost of living. 

2. Economy – There is a flourishing economy, supported by a skilled workforce. 

3. Equality – Those with protected characteristics face fewer barriers and 

4. Housing – There is improved access to good quality housing 

The critical aspect of the plan was the laying of the foundation on how the PSB 
could fulfil it. There was a need to present the PSB as a leadership board rather 
than one of delivery (focus on directing to those that could deliver). 

Page 126



 
 
 
Responding to members’ questions the officers: 
 

 Assured members that the submission and subsequent approval of the Well-
being Plan would meet the statutory deadline. 

 Advised that there had been limited engagement with stakeholders with 
protected characteristics. There was a regional project ongoing attempting to 
improve engagement with those not only with protected characteristics, but 
also those who were at socio economic disadvantage, including hard to 
reach and ‘seldom heard groups’. 

 Encouraged community groups and councillors to promote the engagement 
of residents on the Well-being Plan. 

 Referred to the Wellbeing theme in the report with respect to environmental 
impact and advised that its objective was to: 

o Give support to sustainable and green transport plans that improve 
overall air quality, including active and healthy travel schemes that 
encourage walking and cycling. 

o Decrease carbon emissions and increasing renewable energy 
capacity. 

o Protect and enhance biodiversity and natural habitats, whilst 
increasing and encouraging equal access to countryside assets. 

o Support communities to mitigate and cope with the impacts of climate 
change. 

 Advised that social care was not covered under the Well-being Plan (another 
regional collaboration board, the North Wales Regional Partnership Board, 
delivered on the modernising the social care agenda). 

 
Access to justice in the North Wales area was raised as a concern. The Committee 
heard that changes to the Legal Aid system meant that only 20% of the population 
were eligible for legal assistance, leading to many people having to represent 
themselves in the Family Court. It was asked whether the issue could be 
highlighted in the 2022/2023 report and considered as part of the Well-being Plan? 
It was agreed to add the issue as part of the feedback to the consultation. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion the Joint Committee: 
 
Resolved: - having considered the contents of the report and the draft Well-
Being Plan, and subject to exploratory work taking place as to whether 
‘ensuring sufficient information and assistance was available to enable 

Page 127



Conwy and Denbighshire residents to access justice and legal aid’ fell within 
the remit of the Conwy and Denbighshire Public Services Board; 

(i) to endorse the themes and priority contained in the Public Services 
Board’s Well-Being Plan 2023 to 2028; and 

(ii) to endorse the proposed actions to deliver the Well-Being Plan. 

9 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Scrutiny and Committee Services Officer (CCBC) introduced the draft forward 
work programme (previously circulated) reminding the Committee that the next 
meeting would be 10th March 2023. There were two items tabled: 
 

1. The PSB Risk Register and 

2. Contribution of PSB Partners to the work of the PSB and the benefits of the 
PSB to partners. 

 
The Committee had previously invited the North Wales Fire and Rescue Authority 
to outline their contribution to the PSB and the benefits to them of being part of the 
PSB and had found their contribution very informative. Having considered the 
statutory membership of the Public Services Board they agreed to invite 
representatives of the Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board to attend the next 
meeting to give a presentation for the second business item. 
 
The JOSC: 
 
Resolved:  subject to the above observations to – 
 

(i) confirm its draft forward work programme for its meeting scheduled for 
10 March 2023 as outlined in the report; and  

(ii) that representatives from Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board be 
invited to attend the above meeting to discuss with members the 
Board’s contribution to the work of the Public Services Board, along 
with the benefits to the Health Board of being a member of the Public 
Services Board.   

 
The Scrutiny Coordinator (DCC) reminded the Committee that the Chair of the 
JOSC would be presenting the minutes of the meeting of the JOSC to the next PSB 
meeting as part of the two-way conversation process between both entities. 

10 TERMS OF REFERENCE AND RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CONWY & 
DENBIGHSHIRE PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD JOINT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  
 
The document was noted. 

Page 128



11 FUTURE GENERATIONS FRAMEWORK FOR SCRUTINY  
 
The framework was noted. 

12 MINUTES OF THE PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD MEETING HELD ON 27 JULY 
2022  
 
The information report was noted. 

13 THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME OF THE CONWY & DENBIGHSHIRE 
PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD  
 
The information report was noted. 
 

Meeting concluded at 11:05am. 
 

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

CONWY AND DENBIGHSHIRE PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD 
 

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 
 

2022 / 2023 
 

 
Chair: 

Councillor Jason McLellan, Denbighshire County Council 
 

Vice Chair: 
Councillor Charlie McCoubrey, Conwy County Borough Council 

 
Co-ordinators: 

Emma Lea (Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board) 
Amanda Jones & Hannah Edwards (Conwy County Borough Council) 
Iolo McGregor & Shannon Richardson (Denbighshire County Council) 

Justin Hanson, Helen Millband & Iona Hughes (Natural Resources Wales) 
Pippa Hardwick (North Wales Fire & Rescue Service) 

Siwan Jones (Public Health Wales) 
 

Committee Responsible: 
Denbighshire County Council  

 
For Queries: 

01492 574059 / hannah.edwards@conwy.gov.uk  
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 131

A
genda Item

 7

mailto:hannah.edwards@conwy.gov.uk


 

 

Meeting Date Topic  Purpose Responsible Officer 

30 November 2022 

Well-being Plan – Approve draft plan 
for PSB statutory partners 

To approve draft Well-being Plan for 
PSB statutory partners to present to 

their executive boards. 

 
Iolo McGregor, Denbighshire County 

Council 

Review of PSB risk register To review the PSB’s risk register. 
Amanda Jones, Conwy County Borough 

Council 

Update from PSB joint scrutiny 
committee 

To receive update from Chair of the 
JOSC. 

Chair of PSB scrutiny, Cllr Gareth 
Sandilands 

25 January 2023 Workshop / Informal Meeting 

30 March 2023 
Well-being Plan – Approval for 
publication 

To approve the well-being assessment 
for publication prior to the statutory 

deadline of 5th May 2023. 
Chair 

 
Community Wealth building and 
Progressive Procurement – pilot 
findings and recommendations 

To consider the findings and 
recommendations following the 

project. 

Amanda Jones, Conwy County Borough 
Council 

 

Standard Agenda Items 

Apologies for Absence 

Minutes of last meeting 

Matters Arising 

Meeting Action Tracker 

Forward Work Programme 

AOB 

To be confirmed 

Offshore Windfarm Development TBC 

 

P
age 132


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING
	3 MEETING ACTION TRACKER
	4 WELL-BEING PLAN - APPROVAL OF DRAFT PLAN
	Appendix 1 - Draft Well-being Plan 2023 to 2028 (v5)
	Appendix 2 - Well-being Impact Assessment
	Appendix 3 - NRW Feedback
	Appendix 4a - WBFG Commissioner's Feedback
	Appendix 4b - Summary of FG Report recommendations
	Appendix 4c - PSB steps for addressing the C&N Emergencies
	Appendix 5 - Consultation Overview

	5 REVIEW OF PSB RISK REGISTER
	5. Appendix 1 - CD PSB Risk Register - November 2022
	5. Appendix 2 - Scoring Matrix and Risk Appetite

	6 UPDATE FROM PSB JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
	7 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

